# South Holland School District 151

2024-2025 Parent/Student and Discipline Handbook



**Intentional Blank Page** 

#### **Board of Education**

Patrice Burton	President
Loretta Wells	Vice President
Cynthia Shane	Secretary
Joda Boykin	Member
Benjamin Clark	Member
Corean Davis	Member
Michele Turner	Member

#### **District Administration**

Teresa D. Hill, Ed. D Superintendent
Ernest Clark Assistant Superintendent / CSBO
Dr. Karen Anderson, Director of Student Services
Kathryn Varner Director of Curriculum, Professional Development and Assessment
Anthony Palomo English Language Learners Program Director
Christopher Roth Director of Technology
Vanessa Bradley Coordinator of Public Relations
Phillip Neal Coordinator of Building and Safety

#### **School Board Meetings**

The South Holland School District 151 Board of Education meets at the district office or schools on the first Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m. Meeting dates are subject to change. Refer to the district website for updates, www.shsd151.org

#### **School Administrators**

#### Taft School

**Christine Wilson, Principal** Angelica Guisinger, Assistant Principal 393 E. 163<sup>rd</sup> Street Harvey, IL 60426 (708) 339-2710

#### **Madison School**

**Dr. Jerald McNair, Principal** Erika Thomas, Assistant Principal 15700 Orchid Dr. South Holland, IL 60473 (708) 339-2117

#### **Eisenhower School**

Mr. Peter Kolinski, Principal LaTrica Gamble, Assistant Principal 16001 Minerva Ave. South Holland, IL 60473 (708) 339-5900

#### **Coolidge Middle School**

Mrs. Chevia Rush, Principal Tiedra White, Assistant Principal 155<sup>th</sup> & 7<sup>th</sup> Ave. Phoenix, IL 60426 (708) 339-5300

#### 2024-2025 School Calendar



South Holland School District 151 2024-2025 School Calendar - Board Adopted - 4.2.24

	August							Se	otem	ber						0	ctob	er						No	vem	ber					
S	Μ	Τ	W	TH	F	S		S	Μ	Т	W	TH	F	S		S	Μ	Т	W	TH	F	S		S	Μ	Τ	W	TH	F	S	
				1	2	3	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	4			1	2	3	4	5	3						1	2	1
4	5	6*	7	8	9	10	4	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	5	6	7	8^	9^	10^	11^	12	0	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	3
11	12	13	14	15	16		5		16	17	18	19	20	21	-	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	0	10	••	12	13	14	15	16	4
18	19	20	21	22	23	24	5	22	23	24	25	26	27	28		20	21		23		25	26	5	_	18	19			22	23	5
25	26	27	28	29	30	31	5	29	30					30	-	27	28	29	30	31			4	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	2
_							19								19								12								15
			cem		_			_			inua		_					_	brua	· ·	_	_					Ma		_		
s	M	T	W	TH	F	S	-	S	М	Т	W	TH	F	S		S	M	T	W	TH	F	s		S	Μ	Т	W	TH	F	S	0
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	5	~		7.4	1	2	3	4	0	_	2	4	<i>c</i>	6	7	1	0	_	2	4	6	(	7	1	0
8	9	10	11	12	13	14	5 5	5	6	7^	8^	9^	10^	11		2 9	3	4	5	6 13	7	8		-	3 10	4	5 12	6 13	7 14	8	4
15 22	16	17		19 26	20	21 28	5 0	12 19	13 20	14 21	15 22	16 23	17 24	18 25		9 16	10	11 18	12 19	13 20	14 21	15 22	3	ŕ	10	11 18	12 19	13 20	14 21	14 22	5
22 29	30	31	25	26	- 21	28	0	19 26		21	22	30	31	23	4			25			21 28	22	4		24	25			21 28	22 29	
31	- 30	- 51					15	20	27	28	29	30	51		5 12	23	24	23	20	27	20		5 19	<u> </u>		23	20	21	28	29	5 19
51			Apri				15				May			_	12				June				13	50							13
s	Μ	т	W	TH	F	S		S	м	Т	W	TH	F	s		s	М	Т	W	TH	F	s		*			titute - Day of				
~		1	2	3	4	5	0	~		-		1	2	3	2		2	3	4	5	6	7	5				/Summ				
6	7	8^	9^	10^	11^	12	0	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	5	_	9	10	11	12	13	14	5	^			Instruc		r Stud	ents	
13	14	15	16		18	19	4	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	5	15	16*	17	18	19	20	21	1				her Co				
20	21	22	23	24		26		18	19	20	21	22	23	24	5	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	0				n-Atte				
27	28	29	30				3	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	4	29	30							&			earni				
							12								21								11		Emer	gency	Days				
Ses	sion	1 = 4	11 da	ys			Fall						174																		
			12 da							sessi				Par	ent/7	Teac	her (	Confe	erenc	e Day	vs = 2	2					d 1 - /				
			17 da	·						sessio																	d 2 - (				
Ses	sion	4 = 4	14 da	ys			Sun	nme	$\mathbf{r} = A$	Appro	x. 40	) day	s (wi	th n	o em	erge	ency	days	used	)					-		d 3				
	Grading Period 4 - April 14 - Jun. 16																														

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

General	District	Informa	ation
---------	----------	---------	-------

Board of Education	2
Building Courtesy	8
Cell Phones	8
Communication	9
Emergency Closings	9
Food Services	9
Lockers	10
Lost and Found	10
Smoking/Vaping	10
Steven Amendments	10
Text and Library Book Use	11
Extracurricular Activities	
Band	11
Health and Safety	
Child Abuse and Custody	11
COVID-19	
CPR Training	13
Health	
Medical	14
Medication	15
Mental Health	16
Registration	
Registration and Residency	17
School Supplies	
Student and Parent Particulars	
Academic	19
Alcohol and Drugs	19
Arrival	19
Assemblies	21
Assessment	21
Assignment Notebook	21
Attendance	
Birthday Celebrations	23
Bullying	24
Car Riders at TAFT	24

Change of Address	25
Creating a Caring Culture	25
Dismissal	27
Dress Code	27
Field Trips	29
Fighting	29
Grading System	29
Graduation	31
Homework/Home Projects	32
Identification	33
Kindergarten	33
Library	33
Newsletter	34
National Junior Honor Society	34
Parent Teacher Conference	34
Parent Teacher Organization (PTO)	34
Parent Volunteers	34
Physical Education	35
Pictures	35
Plagiarism AI, and Cheating	35
Positive Behavior Intervention System	36
Preschool Program	36
Promotion and Retention	36
Quality of Work	38
Recess	38
Remote Learning	38
Step Sheet	38
Student Recognition	40
Study Skills	40
Washroom Use	41

#### Support Program and Services

Assistance	41
Character Education	41
English Language Learners	41
McKinney-Vento	43
Peer Mediation/Conflict Resolution/Character Education	43
Playground Supervision	44
Response to Intervention	45
Safety	45
Search and Seizure	45
Social Networks	46
Student and Parent Responsibilities	46
Substitute Teacher	47
Tag-a-Long	47

Telephone Usage 4	17
	17
Video Taping Penalties 4	8
Visitor's Information 4	8
Your Rights 4	8
Special Education	
Section 504 4	8
Speech Services 4	8
Medication 5	50
Technology	
Internet Access 5	51
Transportation	
Bus Behavior 5	52
Bus Routes and Operation Procedures    5	53
Board Policies 5	54
Board Policy 435 Gangs and Gang Activities Comprehensive Health Education Programs Non-Discrimination Board Policy Student Technology Responsibility Use Policy	

# **Intentional Blank Page**

# **General District Information**

# **Building:**

# Courtesy

KEEP HALLS OPEN TO TRAFFIC BY WALKING IN A SINGLE FILE TO THE RIGHT. Do not block traffic by standing in groups and visiting. Pass through the halls quietly. Be considerate of others in the halls and classrooms.

Leave the school building immediately upon dismissal, unless involved in an after-school activity. If you are involved in an after-school activity, go immediately to the area the teacher designated for that activity.

The students will be evaluated on the following:

- 1. Walking single file quietly directly to their next class in an orderly manner
- 2. Not loitering in the hall to talk to friends.
- 3. Not going to the washroom between classes.
- 4. Not shouting or using inappropriate language.
- 5. Keeping hands off other students.
- 6. Not going to lockers during designated times.

# Security:

For safety and security reasons, we request that ALL visitors in the school sign in and out at the office and receive a visitor's pass. PLEASE ENTER THE BUILDING THROUGH THE FRONT DOOR ONLY. Persons proceeding through the building without clearance from the main office may be subject to police arrest. For security reasons the doors to the school are locked. Students are prohibited from opening the doors to anyone.

Teachers have been directed not to open their classroom doors to anyone without a visitor's pass.

# **Cell Phones and Smart Watches:**

Students are not permitted to have cell phones, smart watches, or electronic devices in their possession unless there is specific authorized approval by the principal. See policy 710.20 in the Responsibilities and Rights Discipline Handbook.

Students are not permitted to record or transmit live videos. See Video Taping Penalties in the Responsibilities and Rights Discipline Handbook.

School personnel will confiscate unauthorized possessions of cell phones, smart watches, or electronic devices. It will be the parents' responsibility to pick them up from the school.

COOLIDGE: Cell phones and smart watches are to be kept in the student's assigned locker on their grade level floor. Cell phones and smart watches are not to be transported by the student throughout the school during the school day. Additionally, cell phones and smart watches are not to be taken into or stored in gym lockers within the gym locker room. Students' use of cell phones or smart watches for any reason during the school day could result in a disciplinary consequence. The district and the school will assume

no responsibility for stolen/missing/damaged cell phones or electronic devices. Also, no smart watch of any kind can be worn into the school building, we assume no responsibility.

At Coolidge, when lockers cannot be utilized, students will be required to turn in their cell phones upon entrance to the building and smart watches to the homeroom teachers. Cell phones will be locked up and returned to the student at the end of the day.

## **Informal Communication:**

The School District believes that only by ongoing communication between the home and school can provide the best partnership that will impact our students. Therefore, you can expect to hear from us frequently on an informal basis, via notes, newsletters, or phone calls. We will keep you informed about any problems or concerns and will communicate with you about your child's successes. We encourage parents to communicate with us for the same reason.

## **Emergency Closings:**

Cancellation of school takes place only under extraordinary circumstances such as extreme weather, equipment failure, or public crisis. Emergency closing notices are broadcasted on AM radio WMAQ 670, WGN 720, WBBM 780, and WLS 890. On FM dial 94.7 or B96. Local television coverings include NBC, WGN, FOX, and CLTV. In addition, you may always check our district website at <a href="https://www.shsdl51.org">www.shsdl51.org</a>.

In unusual circumstances where school must be cancelled during the school day, teachers and administrators will determine that all students have satisfactory transportation and supervision at their home before releasing them from school. We advise all parents to have an emergency plan in place where your child can go in the event you are not at home.

# **Food Services:**

All students receive a FREE nutritional breakfast and lunch.

Outside lunches from fast food restaurants are not permitted in the schools. It causes too much disruption. Additionally, Uber Eats, Door Dash, Grubhub, and <u>ALL</u> food delivery services are prohibited from bringing food during, before, or after school for students.

	Except Wednesday	Wednesday
	Kindergarten – 11:15 – 11: 45 a.m.	11:15
Taft	First Grade – 11:45 – 12:15 p.m.	11:45
	Pre-K PM – 12:15 – 12:45 p.m.	
Eisenhower	Second Grade – 11:15 – 11:45	11:15
cisentiower	Third Grade – 11:45 – 12:15	11:45

Madison	4 <sup>th</sup> Grade – 11:30 – 12:00	11:30
IVIAUISOII	5 <sup>th</sup> Grade – 12:00 – 12:30	12:00
	6 <sup>th</sup> Grade – 11:08	10:55
Coolidge	7 <sup>th</sup> Grade – 11:45	11:30
	8 <sup>th</sup> Grade – 12:25	12:05

## Lockers:

All students at Coolidge Middle School are assigned lockers. No student shall share their locker combinations with any other student, nor can they share lockers with other students. Students are responsible for the contents of their lockers and the confidentiality of their locker combinations.

## Lost and Found:

Please tell your children to check the Lost and Found box for lost articles. Many hats, scarves, gloves, and gym shoes have gone unclaimed. Also, please check with the school secretary for lost wrist watches, keys, eyeglasses, or other valuable items. We encourage you to write your child's name on the inside label of jackets, coats, and sweaters. Unlabeled or unclaimed property is turned over to a charitable organization.

# **Smoking/Vaping**

According to Board Policy 710.12, found on the district's website, <u>www.shsd151.org</u> smoking and vaping are hazardous to the health of students and may present a safety hazard in the schools. Federal Law prohibits smoking in any public building or public grounds. The District will not tolerate the use of tobacco products by students on school property or at school functions. Smoking tobacco and/or possession of smoking or vaping materials (including e-cigarettes, vaping devices, cigarettes, cigars or tobacco in any other form, including smokeless tobacco, which is any loose, cut, shredded, ground, powdered, compressed or leaf tobacco) by students is <u>NOT</u> permitted on school buses, in school buildings or on school grounds at any time.

Students found using or in possession of tobacco or vaping products will be subject to disciplinary action. Such disciplinary measures may include issuance of a Police citation, personal counseling, withholding of privileges, and suspension for a period of up to ten (10) days, and/or appropriate alternatives to suspension, such as "stop smoking clinics". In all cases, the parent(s)/guardian(s) will be advised and their cooperation will be sought.

# **Stevens Amendment:**

Disclosure of Federal Participation (Stevens Amendment)

Projects or programs funded in whole or in part with Federal grant money must credit the Federal government for the Federal government's portion of the financial support. This web page citation informs the public that the use of Federal dollars in South Holland School District 151 meets the Stevens

Amendment requirement. Staff development opportunities, resource purchases, and personnel have been funded in whole or in part with Federal entitlement dollars.

## **Text and Library Book Use:**

Textbooks and library books are loaned to students. They will be charged for replacement of books they lose, and fines will be assessed for damage of books beyond normal wear and tear. Please help your child be responsible for these increasingly expensive instructional materials.

If a book is lost, misused, or damaged beyond reasonable wear, the student will replace the book. Students are responsible for the damage that is done to their books. Impress upon your child the importance of caring for his/her books and the costs of replacing them.

To keep our textbooks as clean as possible, we insist that all textbooks be covered with book covers. Normal use/wear of textbooks and library books is expected.

**Remember**: defacing, abusing, or losing a book will result in a replacement fee. Please help your child be responsible for these increasingly expensive instructional materials.

## **Extracurricular Activities**

## **Band**:

Students receive a grade for band and are expected to attend all classes, practices, and concerts. We believe our band program fosters study skills that transfer to all academic areas. The program runs the entire school year and is not a drop in or out program.

Madison has a two-part band program which is available to students in grades 4<sup>th</sup> and 5<sup>th</sup>. The Beginning Band is intended for novice musicians, while the Cadet Band is open to advanced musicians. Rental instruments are available to students.

Coolidge Middle School has a three-part band program which consists of Concert, Symphonic, and Jazz Band. The Concert band is comprised of 6<sup>th</sup> grade students, Symphonic Band is comprised of 7th and 8th grade students, and Jazz Band is comprised of selected 6th – 8th grade students.

# Health and Safety

## Child:

# Abuse/Neglect – Allegations/Suspicions:

School personnel are mandated to report when there is suspicion of child abuse or neglect. They will follow the procedures of the State of Illinois and report the suspicion to proper authorities. If a staff member is under the belief that sexual, physical, or mental child abuse is occurring or has occurred, a report will be made to the Illinois Department of Children and Family Services. For your parents' reference, the telephone number is 1-800-25-ABUSE. See the Illinois Abuse and Neglect Child Reporting Act III.

# **Child Custody:**

It is important that the school is notified of any special court sanctioned arrangements regarding custody of and access to children whose parents are divorced and/or separated.

Regardless of custody, both parents have the right to inspect and receive a copy of school records and reports in the absence of a court order to the contrary. Ordinarily, the school shall release a student to either parent unless the school has a copy of a court order giving one parent exclusive custody.

# **COVID Protocol:**

CDC recommends strongly encouraging parents or caregivers to monitor their children for symptoms of illness every day.

Students who are exhibiting symptoms of illness should not attend school.

- If the child is experiencing any of the following, please keep them at home.
- Fever or chills
- Cough
- Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing
- Fatigue
- Muscle or body aches
- Headache
- New loss of taste or smell
- Sore throat
- Congestion or runny nose
- Nausea or vomiting
- Diarrhea

# Illness/Injury/Accident/COVID-19:

When a child becomes ill at school, an attempt will be made to contact the parent or other adult listed on the emergency form so that the child can be picked up. No child can be permitted to leave during school hours without adult supervision.

Parents are asked to keep their children home for 24 hours following an elevated temperature and/or vomiting that occurs in school. Any child with an undiagnosed rash or un-healing sore will be excluded from school until the rash or sore has disappeared unless a physician's note verifies that the condition is non-communicable. Following a strep infection such as throat, scarlatina, scarlet fever or impetigo, a physician's note must be submitted for re-entrance into school.

When a child becomes ill at home, please call the school so that your child can be marked as an excused absence. If they have the following symptoms: fever, Earache, dizziness/faintness, excessive sneezing/coughing, inflamed eye (red or sore), sore throat, nausea/vomiting, swollen glands, chills/headache, severe pain, skin rash/lesion, or Acute cold, please do not send them to school.

#### RULES FOR THE CONTROL OF INFECTIOUS DISEASES

- Conjunctivitis (pink eye) Until eyes are clear and no pus remains, at least 24 hours, with prescription treatment.
- Impetigo Until all crusts are dry and scabbed.

- Pediculosis (head lice) Until free of all lice and nits.
- Scabies Until skin is clear.
- Ringworm Until area is declared not infectious by a physician, or child wears a tightfitting cap covering the lesions.
- Diarrhea

#### **COVID-19 PROTOCOL**

CDC recommends strongly encouraging parents or caregivers to monitor their children for symptoms of illness every day.

Children who are exhibiting symptoms of illness should not attend school.

- If the child is experiencing any of the following, please keep them at home.
- Fever or chills
- Cough
- Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing
- Fatigue
- Muscle or body aches
- Headache
- New loss of taste or smell
- Sore throat
- Congestion or runny nose
- Nausea or vomiting

A statement from a doctor is required after an absence due to an infectious disease. The child must be kept at home until the symptoms disappear and the temperature has been normal for at least 24 HOURS.

Any accident occurring on the way to school or in school should be reported immediately to a teacher and the school office. In case of illness or injury, a child will be cared for temporarily by the school nurse or a member of the school staff. School personnel will render first aid treatment only (e.g., cleanse cuts, apply band-aides, take temperatures, and apply ice packs). If the condition warrants, a parent will be called to pick up the child. **It is very important that a current, valid emergency number is on file to cover such crises.** Whenever there is a need for a change in the emergency information, please contact the school office **immediately**.

In the case where immediate medical attention is necessary and the parent cannot be reached, the child will be taken to the hospital by paramedics. When possible, the physician listed on the pupil's emergency form will be contacted.

IMPORTANT – If you do not have a phone the school must have some way of quickly contacting you via a accurate emergency phone numbers.

The cost of the medical care is the obligation of the parent even though school officials may arrange for the child to receive the medical care. **The School District strongly recommends that you enroll your child in the school insurance program if you do not presently have insurance coverage.** A note from a parent must be presented to the office if for some reason a student cannot participate in gym classes. A statement from a doctor must be on file if a student is to be excused for an extended length of time.

# **CPR Training:**

In August 2013, Public Act 098-0305 took effect. This act requires the IHSA to be given a CPR training video to post on its website so that staff at IHSA-member schools can watch it. The act also indicates school districts should notify parents and encourage them to view the video. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Zh\_uWrNaVQI

# Health:

ALL second graders must have a dental examination before May 15th. Forms may be obtained in the office. Students transferring to Eisenhower must submit proof that they follow Illinois State Law regarding health and immunization requirements. For forms and more information, www.shsd151.org, Parent Information.

Illinois State Law requires that all students entering school for the first time, beginning sixth grade, or enrolling in an Illinois school for the first time, must have a physical and dental examination and must be immunized by a licensed physician within twelve months prior to the beginning of school. Forms to be completed by the parent and physician must be on an Illinois form provided by the doctor. They are also available in the school office.

The State of Illinois now requires all children, beginning kindergarten or first grade for the first time, or children who are transferring into Illinois from out of state, to have a comprehensive eye examination prior to starting school. The examination must be done by an optometrist or ophthalmologist. The results must be submitted to the school by the parents, on a form approved by the Illinois Department of Public Health, prior to October 15, 2010. The examination may be done within one year prior to beginning school. This requirement began in the 2008 school year and applies to all future years.

Illinois law also requires that proof of immunization from communicable disease be on file at the school. The Department of Public Health requires proof of immunity from diphtheria, pertussis, tetanus, rubeola (red measles), poliomyelitis, and rubella (German measles) and hepatitis B. Mumps' vaccine is strongly recommended, but not required.

According to the law, any child whose parents have not presented proof of the required health examination and immunization shall be excluded from school. To ensure the health of all students, the Board of Education and the school administration will stand firm on its policy to exclude from school any students who have not complied with this requirement.

# **Medical:**

During registration, the school nurse should be informed of any health conditions your child may have.

If your child is asthmatic or has allergies, please consult with your child's physician to confirm if he/she does not need an inhaler or Epi-Pen present at school.

Self-Administration of Medication A student may possess and self-administer an epinephrine injector (e.g., EpiPen®) and/or an asthma inhaler or medication prescribed for use at the student's discretion, provided the student's parent/guardian has completed and signed a School Medication Authorization Form. Students who are diabetic may possess and self-administer diabetic testing supplies and insulin if authorized by the student's diabetes care plan, which must be on file with the school. Students with

epilepsy may possess and self-administer supplies, equipment, and medication, if authorized by the student's seizure action plan, which must be on file with the school. Students may self-administer (but not possess on their person) other medications required under a qualified plan, provided the student's parent/guardian has completed and signed a School Medication Authorization Form. No District Liability The school District shall incur no liability, except for willful and wanton conduct, because of any injury arising from a student's self-administration of medication, including asthma medication 30 or epinephrine injectors, or medication required under a qualifying plan. A student's parent/guardian must indemnify and hold harmless the school District and its employees and agents, against any claims, except a claim based on willful and wanton conduct, arising out of a student's self-administration of an epinephrine injector, asthma medication, and/or a medication required under a qualifying plan.

Administration of Medical Cannabis In accordance with the Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Program, qualifying students are allowed to utilize medical cannabis infused products while at school and school events. Please contact the building principal for additional information. Discipline of a student for being administered a product by a designated caregiver pursuant to this procedure is prohibited. The District may not deny a student attendance at a school solely because he or she requires administration of the product during school hours.

## **Medication:**

Medication required by a student shall generally not be administered at school by a District employee. This includes even common aspirin and Tylenol. However, students recovering from temporary illness or students on permanent medication who require medication during the school day may bring medication to school following these guides:

The student's physician must provide written orders to the District specifying the student's name, the medication, the purpose of the medication, the necessity for the medication during the day, the type of disease or illness involved, the correct dosage, the time medication is to be administered, the benefits of the medication, any side effects, and an emergency number where physician can be reached. Forms can be obtained from the school office.

The student's parent or guardian must request in writing that the School District comply with the physician/s orders, indicating those persons who are authorized to administer the medication. The parent or guardian shall be requested to sign a written consent form where medication will be administered by administrative school employees rather than a certified school nurse. Forms can be obtained from the school office.

The medication must be brought to the school office by the student's parent or guardian in a pharmaceutical container labeled with the student's name, name of medication, the dosage, and all pertinent instructions. A maximum of a one-week supply of medication may be sent to school at any one time.

Medical Alert!!! If your child has asthma, you are required by law to complete a Student Medication Form. This form must be completed by the parents and the child's doctor and will be kept in the school's office. This will allow your child to use the inhaler as needed should an asthma attack occur. If your child takes medication at home, it is wise to inform the school of his/her health condition, especially in the case of asthma. In addition, you are asked to complete the Self-Administration of Asthma Medication Form.

# **Mental Health**

Students who are experiencing crisis or a momentary difficulty in their lives have access to a social worker in each building. A social worker can see a student up to three times without written permission from a parent. If your child continues to need ongoing support but does not have an IEP, you will have to fill out a general education social work form providing the District with permission to continue to have your child see a social worker for a time determined by a social worker.

If your child is at risk to themselves or others in the school environment, we will support you in finding outside resources by calling the SASS hotline for mental health support for your child. Screening, Assessment and Support Services (SASS) is a crisis mental health service program for children and adolescents, who are experiencing a psychiatric emergency. SASS agencies provide intensive mental health services for eligible children and youth who may need hospitalization, or community based mental health care. SASS services are available by calling the CARES line. You will be contacted by a school administrator or a social worker to let you know that a SASS call has been placed and this is an agency that is supported by the state of Illinois to support families. It is not a DCFS call.

If your child is showing a risk to themselves or someone in your home, you can contact CARES. CARES stands for Crisis and Referral Entry Services. CARES is a telephone response service that handles mental health crisis calls for children and youth in Illinois. A parent/guardian may check to see if their child can receive SASS services, by calling the CARES Crisis Line: 1-800-345-9049 (Voice), 1-773-523-4504 (TTY). You should call CARES when a child is at risk to himself or others and any time you or others think a child is having a mental health crisis. If a child has mental health problems but is not a risk to self or others and is not experiencing a crisis, contact your local community mental health services provider on the IDHS website at: http://www.dhs.state.il.us/page.aspx?module=12&officetype=&county= or call Child and Adolescent Client Assistance Line at: 312-793-1361, Monday-Friday, 8:30 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. (excluding Holidays).

# Registration

# **Registration & Residency:**

Student registration is handled at the District Office by appointment only. Please call (708) 339-1516 to schedule. Please carefully read the requirement below. Bring the original most current documents.

in order to register, bring the following requi	ica nemo with you.					
Homeowners	Renters					
Child's original Birth Certificate State of Illinois Certificate of Child Health Examination Transfer (ISBE 33/78) from the student's previous Illinois public school district	Child's original Birth Certificate State of Illinois Certificate of Child Health Examination Transfer (ISBE 33/78) from the student's previous Illinois public school district					
Current Valid driver's license or state ID with a Valid address within School District 151 boundaries.	Current Valid driver's license or state ID with a Valid address within School District 151 boundaries.					
Current Mortgage document (coupon book) or closing papers.	Current lease showing date of expiration; the name, address, and telephone number of the landlord. Must also display signatures					
Two (2) of the following showing a current date: (must have current name and address) a. Utility bill (water, gas, electric, garbage) b. Property Tax bill c. Voter's Registration Card d. License Plate Registration e. Renter's Insurance f. Auto Insurance Policy g. Homeowner's Insurance	Two (2) of the following showing a current date: (must have current name and address) a. Utility bill (water, gas, electric, garbage) b. Property Tax bill c. Voter's Registration Card d. License Plate Registration e. Renter's Insurance f. Auto Insurance Policy g. Homeowner's Insurance					
FOR THOSE WHO LIVE WITH A RESIDENT: (Two of the following must be provided with ID & <u>Notarized Affidavit</u> )         1.       License Plate Registration         2.       Voter's Registration Card         3.       Auto Insurance Policy         4.       Change of address confirmation from the U.S. Post Office         5.       Front page of most recent federal or state income tax return         6.       Bank Statement         7.       Paycheck stub						
CUSTODY DOCUMENTATION  1. Divorce Decree (front page showing petitioner, custody section(s), last page with court stamps)  2. Current form 906 from the Department of Children and Family Services.  3. Guardianship documents or other affidavits of custody.						

In order to register, bring the following required items with you:

# **School Supplies:**

#### Ready Day One

The School District is providing our "Ready Day One" program as an incentive to complete the registration process! Each student that is registered for the 2024-25 school year will receive a clear backpack with some school supplies! All students are **REQUIRED** to use CLEAR BACKPACKS. One will be provided for all students who register. We want to ensure that every child is ready to start school on day one! Thank you for your support.

Point your opened camera app at the QR code from any angle and receive the school's supply list.

Apunte su aplicación de cámara al código QR: debería poder apuntar su cámara desde cualquier ángulo y aún así recibir la lista de útiles escolares.



# MADISON



# **EISENHOWER**



# COOLIDGE



# **Student and Parent Particulars**

# Academic:

Your child's academic progress will be monitored through the school year. You will be notified if your child is not making sufficient progress to achieve the exit criteria for his/her grade level. Teachers will be in contact with you throughout the year. If there is no improvement after the third grading period, you will be notified of our recommendation for retention. The final retention notice will be mailed to you by the middle of May. In addition to academic progress, many other factors are considered before a child is recommended for retention including age, grade level, behavior, attitude, motivation, etc. The Illinois School code prohibits social promotion. Retention recommendations will be decided during the fourth grading period and retention conferences will be scheduled with parents at that time.

Classroom grades are updated in PowerSchool on a weekly basis by classroom teachers. Parents are responsible for checking PowerSchool on a regular basis to stay informed of their child's academic progress. Parents/Guardians are encouraged to call at any time to set up additional conferences to discuss their child's progress.

Parent/Teacher Conferences are held twice a year and the report cards are reviewed at these conferences. Notices are sent out in advance and parents are encouraged to call at any time to set up additional conferences to discuss their child's progress. **Appointments can be arranged before or after school or during a teacher's planning time. Please call the school to make an appointment.** Report cards are issued four times a year. Each quarter's report is yours to keep. However, you will be receiving the report card in an envelope. Please sign and return the envelope to let us know that you have seen your child's quarterly report card.

In addition to the report card, you will again be receiving progress reports. This report lets you know your child's progress at mid-point (5 weeks) of each quarter. It is meant to alert students and parents to academic and behavior difficulties so that improvement can take place before report card grades are assessed. <u>Midterm progress reports should be signed by you and returned to the classroom teacher in the progress report envelope.</u>

# **Alcohol and Drugs**

<u>ALL</u> schools in South Holland School District 151 are alcohol and drug free schools per Board Policies 710.14 and 715.01 found on the district's website, www.shsd151.org . Also according to Board Policy 710.15 the use of alcohol and drugs is illegal and will not be tolerated. If a student is under the influence of alcohol or drugs, he/she will be immediately suspended from school pending an investigation of the situation. The District reserves the right to inspect any beverage containers brought onto any school property. Students using or possessing alcohol or drugs, including paraphernalia, will be referred to the police.

The mere possession of alcohol or drugs (including the paraphernalia associated with drugs) on a student's person, in a car, at school events, or in a locker will result in suspension and referral to a community enforcement prevention agency. The school assumes that a person bringing such substances to school has the intention of using or selling them. At a disciplinary conference with the dean, counselor, parents, and student, the specific circumstances of the incident and any underlying problems will be discussed. Consequences, which may include suspension or a recommendation for expulsion will be determined at the disciplinary conference. Alternatives, such as further education and counseling, may

also be recommended. However, the responsibility for getting special counseling will rest with the student and his/her parents. Prior to the student returning to school, a meeting will be required with parents to determine what follow-up measures have been pursued.

# Arrival:

SCHOOL	Norm	al Day	Wednesday
	START	END	Early Release
Taft Pre-K AM	8:30 AM	11:00 AM	
Taft Pre-K PM	12:15 PM	3:00 PM	2:30 PM
Taft K - First	8:30 AM	3:00 PM	2:30 PM
Eisenhower	8:30 AM	3:00 PM	2:30 PM
Madison	8:30 AM	3:00 PM	2:30 PM
Coolidge	7:50 AM	2:30 PM	2:00 PM

Supervision at Taft, Eisenhower, and Madison school begins at 8:15 a.m. Students are not allowed to be on school grounds before 8:15 a.m. Students arriving after 8:30 a.m. are considered tardy. They must report to the office for an admittance slip and then proceed to class. Teachers are not allowed to accept students who enter their classroom late without a tardy slip.

Taft Pre-K PM classes begin at 12:15 p.m. Students arriving after 12:20 p.m. are considered tardy.

Coolidge Middle School classes begin at 7:50 a.m. Students who enter the school after 7:52 a.m. are considered tardy.

For safety, students should not be dropped off in the parking lot. Drivers may be unable to see children who may run or walk in between or behind other vehicles to get to their vehicle.

The office will monitor instances of tardiness. If a student is tardy three times parents will be notified. Students experiencing frequent tardiness must be reported to the Regional Office of Education for followup as possible truants.

Taft	<ul><li>Students arriving on a bus enter the north side of the building.</li><li>Students arriving by car, private transportation, or by foot enter through the east gym (Door #10).</li><li>For security purposes, all doors are kept locked. Parents/Guardians will not be able to enter the building through the east gym doors. They must enter through the main entrance only.</li></ul>
	Cars must drop students off on the south side of the building, in the parent pickup/drop off lane. The entrance to the car-rider line is off Woodlawn Avenue. All student car riders will be assigned a number for pickup. The laminated number must be displayed on the car's

Eisenhower	dashboard when the child is picked up. If you do not have your number shown on your dashboard, you must come to the front office to check your child out with a valid ID. The front circular driveway is only for bus drop-off before 8:30 am. This ensures the safety of the children. Even if you do not see buses in the front
	circular drive, cars must use the drop-off on the south side of the building before 8:30 am.
Madison	Students should be dropped off on Orchid Drive before school and not on the West side (new Main Entrance) of the building. However, if the student arrives after 8:30 a.m., the parent must drop the student off at the Main Entrance.
Coolidge	The parking lot (circle drive) should not be used to drop off or pick up children from $7:30 - 8:00$ a.m. Also, driving to the back of the school is prohibited.

# **Assemblies:**

Assemblies are an intricate aspect of the instructional program in all grades. These activities allow sharing of the exciting things that teachers and students are doing in the schools. Assemblies are planned periodically as special events on the school calendar. Special attention to etiquette and good citizenship is expected of all students. Parents are cordially invited to attend all our assemblies and programs.

# Assessment:

# Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC)

All third through eighth grade students will take the Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers test. This test will measure individual student achievement relative to the Common Core Standards. The result will give parents, teachers, and schools one measure of student learning and school performance. For more information visit http://www.parcconline.org.

# **Assignment Notebook:**

Kindergarten through 8<sup>th</sup> grade students are provided with an assignment notebook. This is an important communication tool between the school and the home. Students write down their daily assignments and reminders. Teachers document student behavior for the day and write notes if necessary. They will be checked on a regular basis to ensure that it is being used and that the homework assigned is being completed. These books must be signed each Thursday by a parent/guardian and returned to school on Friday.

Note: Taft and Eisenhower assignment books must be signed daily by a parent/guardian and returned to school each day.

# Attendance:

The academic progress of elementary school students depends greatly upon punctuality and regularity of attendance. The foundation of education is built upon a sequential program. When this sequence is interrupted the program is incomplete. The absent student is always at a disadvantage because it is impossible for teachers to repeat the learning experience that took place in a classroom situation. However, students are still responsible for any assignments done in class or assigned for homework.

However, an ill child should not be in school since this may result in his or her health being further impaired and may result in other children being exposed to a communicable disease, i.e., chicken pox, ring worm, etc.

To make sure that absent children are safe at home, parents are asked to call the school.

- Taft Primary Center 339-2710, Eisenhower Elementary 339-5900 and Madison School- 339-2117 must be contacted by 9:00 a.m. on the days when the child is absent.
- Coolidge Middle School 339-5300 must be contacted between 7:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. on the days when the child is absent.

If the school has not been contacted by the designated time, the school will contact the parents.

A note stating the case of absence <u>MUST</u> accompany the student upon his/her return to school. The note should include:

- 1. The date(s) of the child's absences
- 2. The specific reason for the absence or a doctor's note
- 3. The signature of the parent or guardian

Any student who is absent for a full day <u>cannot</u> attend or participate in any extracurricular activities for the day of absence.

Absences due to personal illness, serious illness in the family or emergencies that may occur, which in the judgment of the principal are justified, shall be considered excused. Any other absence shall be considered unexcused. If the absence is excused, students will be allowed to make-up the work missed during the absence. A parent of a student who merits an excused absence assumes the responsibility to check with the teacher about specific work to be made up. If the work is not made up within a reasonable amount of time, then the student will be given a zero for each day missed. No make-up work will be allowed for unexcused absences. (A zero will be recorded on the grade of a student for the unexcused period.) There will be no deduction on grades already earned.

Parents planning a vacation which requires a child's absence from school should discuss the matter with the child's teacher well in advance of departure. Make-up work following the vacation should be completed as directed by the teacher. Parents requesting absences of greater than ten (10) days will be asked to transfer their student from the school or re-register upon their return to the district.

Early dismissal for dental or doctor's appointments, etc., must be requested in writing by parents. No child will be permitted to leave school with an unidentified person. Parents, guardians, or a parent's designee must sign the child out of the school, in the office, before he or she leaves the building. Students are not allowed to accept rides home from friends or neighbors without prior notification.

For a student to have a full day of attendance, the student must meet a minimum of 300 minutes of instruction, with the a.m. and p.m. attendance of 150 minutes each. Should a student not meet those minimum requirements, a half-day absence shall be recorded. To avoid this situation, please make sure your child is on time each day.

#### Truancy

Regular attendance at school is mandatory. Students who are repeatedly absent without valid and verifiable cause are considered truant. All absences are monitored in the school office and parents will be notified if a child's attendance record is approaching truancy level. **Continued absences must be reported to the Educational Service Region Truancy Department for follow-up by county officials**.

# **Birthday Celebrations:**

Prior to sharable treats being sent to school, please contact the school to find out their guidelines. The generic guidelines are:

- 1. The teacher MUST know in advance (24-48 hours) that you will be sending a treat.
- 2. The treat should be limited to cupcakes or other pre-packaged items, pencils, erasers, or small party favors. These are items that can easily be distributed to all students.
- 3. Please include napkins, forks, or plates, if needed.
- 4. Plan the treat for lunchtime.
- 5. **CANDLES** are not allowed.
- 6. Please do not send party invitations to school unless the entire class is invited.
- 7. If ice cream is considered, please purchase individual cups.
- 8. Homemade treats are not permissible.

#### Taft School

- Parents are allowed to drop off store bought individual cupcakes with napkins for students to enjoy in the classroom. There must be enough for all the students in the classroom.
- Parent/Guardian must contact the classroom teacher in advance (24-48 hours) to arrange the day/time to bring in cupcakes with napkins.
- With the teacher's approval a parent may come to the classroom to sing Happy Birthday with the class. Presents, balloons, candles, etc. are not allowed.
- Students may distribute birthday invitations if the entire class is invited.

Eisenhower School only allows store-purchased and sealed cupcakes to be brought to school to celebrate birthdays. Cupcakes will only be served during lunch and must be delivered prior to 11 am. Balloons are NOT allowed.

Coolidge Middle School students are not allowed to bring in birthday treats (cupcakes, balloons, etc.) Sashes, crowns, and any other birthday celebration paraphernalia. Due to Coolidge's departmentalized schedule, the only time for students to distribute treats is during lunch. Thereby causing a major disruption in the cafeteria because it is impossible for a student to have enough treats to give to the entire department in the cafeteria.

## **Bullying:**

Bullying on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, military status, sexual orientation, gender-related identity or expression, unfavorable discharge from military service, association with a person or group with one or more of the aforementioned actual or perceived characteristics, or any other distinguishing characteristics is prohibited in all school districts and non-public, non-sectarian elementary and secondary schools. No student shall be subjected to bullying:

- 1) during any school-sponsored education program or activity.
- 2) while in school, on school property, on school buses or other school vehicles, at designated school bus stops waiting for the school bus, or at school-sponsored or school-sanctioned events or activities; or
- 3) through the transmission of information from a school computer, a school computer network, or other similar electronic school equipment.

"Bullying" means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or electronically, directed toward a student or students that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

- 1) placing the student or students in reasonable fear of harm to the student's or students' person or property.
- 2) causing a substantially detrimental effect on the student's or students' physical or mental health.
- 3) substantially interfering with the student's or students' academic performance; or
- 4) substantially interfering with the student's or students' ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.

Bullying, as defined, may take various forms, including without limitation one or more of the following: harassment, threats, intimidation, stalking, physical violence, sexual harassment, sexual violence, theft, public humiliation, destruction of property, or retaliation for asserting or alleging an act of bullying. This list is meant to be illustrative and non-exhaustive.

# **Car Riders at TAFT**

Regular car riders must have their laminated sign visible at pick up. Contact the office if you need a new one.

Please have your child prepared to exit the car – outerwear on and backpacks filled. Staff members will assist your children in getting out of the car.

Car riders must be dropped off following the route on the map to prevent accidents and ensure everyone's safety.

Please remember to follow this route: From 163rd Street, turn into Wallace Street. From Wallace Street, turn left on 162nd Street and then left on Jefferson Street. Please do not block the bus exit gates. Turn right into the Taft car rider parking lot and follow the car line.

Do not park in the lot and walk your child to the doors. This is unsafe.



## Change of Address, Name, or Phone Number:

If we need to contact you immediately, it is important that we have accurate emergency phone numbers on file. For this reason, teachers request Emergency Information Sheets be completed at the beginning of each school year. Please complete and return these forms and notify the office during the year of any changes in emergency contact names and/or phone numbers.

For name changes, a birth certificate or court documentation must be provided to the District office.

### **Character Education:**

## **Creating a Caring Culture:**

To build and strengthen character, community, and social responsibility, we have established three expectations that all students and staff are expected to always exercise. Students and staff are expected to be safe, responsible, and respectful throughout the day, while in the school and outside. Parents are urged to help support the school and the strengthening of our caring culture by reinforcing these expectations at home. Together, we can help students become cautious, accountable, and courteous individuals.

#### **Dismissal:**

Any person picking up a child other than a family member will be required to sign a form prior to the release of the child.

Board Policy 435 (Found in General Information- Dismissal Section and School Calendar): Children are picked up and dropped off at a bus stop closest to their home.

#### **Making Prior Arrangements:**

The school is aware that parents sometimes request that relatives or friends pick their children up from school. Verbal requests by children to change dismissal procedures will not be honored. Only parents and/or legal guardians may request in writing a change in dismissal arrangements.

#### **Rare Emergencies:**

On rare occasions, parents need to change dismissal arrangements once the child has arrived at school. The school needs to know about these changes, but we request telephone calls to inform us be **made no later than 10:45 a.m. or 2:15 p.m**. on Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, Friday and 1:45 p.m. on Wednesday. Calls after these times often get lost or are simply forgotten in the stress of dismissal.

#### Student Pick up/Walkers:

Taft	<ul> <li>Parents/Guardians are expected to enter the line in the east parking lot, off Jefferson Street. All vehicles should form a single file line. Individuals cannot park and walk to pick students up. This causes safety concerns for students and individuals as vehicles are entering and exiting the parking lot. Door 10 will not open until 2:55 p.m.</li> <li>The parents or guardians of children who are picked up on a regular basis must show a Taft Identification Card. Parents who do not have their Identification Card will be asked to check in at the office.</li> <li>A note from the parent or guardian should be sent to the office if a child is to be dismissed early or to another adult.</li> </ul>
Eisenhower	Cars must pick up students on the south side of the building, in the parent pick up/drop off lane. The entrance to the car-rider line is off Woodlawn Avenue. The front circular driveway is for <u>bus pick up only</u> after 2:50 pm and 2:20 pm on Wednesdays. This ensures the front circular driveway is available for arriving buses. Even if you do not see buses in the front circular drive, cars must use the parent pick up/drop off lane on the <u>south side</u> of the building.

Madison	Walkers and students being picked up will be dismissed through the East door. For your child's safety, students should be picked up on Orchid Drive and <u>not</u> in the parking lot.
Coolidge	The parking lot (Circle Drive) should <u>not</u> be used to pick up children. Additionally, driving to the back of the school to pick up or drop off a child is prohibited.
	Students may be picked up along the east and west end of 155 <sup>th</sup> Street.

# Early Dismissal:

It is important that parents have their children in school every day, all day that school is in session and only in unavoidable cases should a parent take a student out of school before the close of the school day. Students who need to leave school early due to personal or family-related reasons must secure, in advance, permission from the Principal's office. The request for an early dismissal should be made by the parents in writing or in case of an emergency, by phone. No student will be allowed to leave while school is in session without authorized adult supervision and the proper sign-out procedure in the office is completed.

If the school does not know you by sight, please do not become offended if we ask for identification before releasing your child to you. If someone other than a parent is picking up your child, the office <u>MUST</u> be notified in <u>WRITING</u>. Your child's safety is our utmost concern. Please make sure that you list all authorized people allowed to pick up your child on the Registration Form.

*Please note*: The State of Illinois has new regulations affecting early dismissals.

Students are not allowed to leave the school campus during school hours for any reason without the knowledge and consent of their teacher. Permission to leave the school grounds or neighboring properties will only be granted upon written request from the student's parent or guardian.

Every Wednesday the students are dismissed one-half an hour earlier than the other school days.

# **Dress Code:**

Students are encouraged to dress in a neat manner that reflects pride in themselves and their school. District 151 elementary schools have established a dress code for students. The purpose of the dress code is to help students differentiate school time from play time and the appropriate dress of each. Students should wear clothes which are safe, do not disturb or distract other students, and are appropriate for learning.

Children of Taft School should be dressed in comfortable play clothes. Your child will be actively playing indoors and outdoors, cooking, and involved in activities which may be messy. Sneakers (with Velcro closure are preferred) and socks are best for your child's safety. Jackets, winter coats, hats, mittens, and boots are necessary because your child will be playing outdoors almost every day, including snowy days when the temperature is 30° Fahrenheit or higher. When wearing boots, your child will need a pair of sneakers to wear in the classroom and/or gymnasium. Names should be placed on coats, hats, and mittens just in case they are lost.

For safety purposes, gym shoes should be worn during Physical Education (P.E.) class. Students can change into their gym shoes every day before P.E. class. Below are items not allowed.

- 1. No Pajama-like pants (fleece, cotton, etc.)
- 2. Dresses or skirts more than 3 inches above the knee all the way around (front and back)
- 3. Sunglasses, fashion eye ware, including nonprescription eyeglasses
- 4. Low-cut tight or revealing clothing.
- 5. Tank tops or tops for girls with spaghetti straps without a T-shirt worn underneath or any other sleeveless top or shirt.
- 6. Hoods that are attached to tops/shirts cannot be placed on heads inside the building.
- 7. Caps, hats, or stocking caps
- 8. Scarves, Hair nets or hair coverings of any kind including Do-Rags.
- 9. Shirts with obscene or sexual connotations; gang signs; beer, liquor, or drug logos; symbols of death, or sayings that are derogatory to education, racial or ethnic groups. Tops or pants with suggestive pet names (e.g., honey, baby, negative influences, Hustler, 2-Pac, Scarface, guns, etc.) written/displayed across the chest or posterior. Clothing with skulls or skulls and cross bone symbols
- 10. Clothing that is cut or frayed can be worn but must cover any exposed skin.
- 11. Gang, satanic or any other clothing that is associated with any club or group not authorized by the school. Such clothing may consist of medallions, necklaces, rings, shoelaces, caps, hats, and t-shirts.
- 12. Shoelaces should be the predominant color of the shoe. A combination of red and black; blue and black; gold and black, are not permitted, as they can be gang representation.
- 13. Mesh shirts without another shirt under or over them or see-through shirts for girls without proper apparel underneath
- 14. Any other wearing apparel that would pose a safety problem or disrupt the educational process.
- 15. Outdoor jackets may not be worn in the classroom. This includes wind breakers and lightweight jackets or pullovers.
- 16. Hair rollers, curlers, or metal wave clamp
- 17. Tight and/or revealing spandex clothing.
- 18. Shorts or skorts, sleeveless or capped-sleeved tops ARE NOT ALLOWED AT COOLIDGE MIDDLE SCHOOL. However, they can be worn at Taft, Eisenhower, and Madison. The length of the shorts or skorts must be fingertip length when the students arms are by their sides.
- 19. Hair that has been spot colored or sprayed-dyed in extreme or unnatural colors.
- 20. Baggy, sagging or loose-fitting jeans or slacks without a belt.
- 21. Names, designs, or other distractions of the hair
- 22. Underwear should not be visible outside of clothing.
- 23. Purses and/or backpacks must be left in hall lockers.
- 24. Capri pants must come mid-calf of the leg.
- 25. Combs and brushes are to be used in the washrooms not in the classrooms Make-up is not allowed.
- 26. For safety and to minimize distractions of all concerned, purses, chain wallets, dog tags, book bags, pouches of any kind, and athletic bags are not allowed in the classrooms or the lunchroom

- they must be left in the lockers.
- 27. House shoes/slippers
- 28. Overly large chains/necklaces
- 29. Permanent or temporary tattoos and body piercings (tongue, eyebrow, nose, etc.) Pre-existing tattoos must be covered by clothing.
- 30. Unkempt or partially braided hair
- 31. Athletic arm tights/sleeves
- 32. NO Leggings, unless worn with a dress or skirt that fully covers the entire buttocks or ripped jeans that conceal the skin.
- 33. NO cuts in eyebrows
- 34. Clothing cannot be tied in a knot.

# **Field trips:**

Field trips are scheduled for educational, enrichment, or recreational purposes and are regarded as an integral part of the school program.

- On-line Registration Consent Parents will receive notices of field trips well in advance of the trip date.
- Adult chaperones may be requested to help with student supervision. Chaperones must be over the age of 21 and complete a background check.
- Trip fees may be required from students/chaperones to help defray the cost of transportation and/or admittance to the event.
- Permission slips MUST be signed by the parent/guardian and handed in by the due date. Telephone permission is NOT acceptable. Students without a signed permission slip will remain at school for a regular school day.
- Students who are not in attendance on the day of the field trip may not be brought to the field trip by a parent or guardian.
- Students may not be transported from a field trip site by a parent or guardian. Students must return to the school by the provided transportation.
- Field trips are off school ground activities; therefore, the standard of behavior must be of the highest quality. Students who maintain an unsatisfactory discipline record will need to be accompanied by an adult to participate in any field trip. Parents will be notified accordingly.

# Fighting/Playfighting:

Fighting is strictly forbidden in school; coming to or from school; or on the school campus. Breaking this rule will result in an immediate suspension in or out of school and a conference with the student's parents. Who says what first or first strikes another student is guilty as anyone striking back. Fighting is a Level III or IV Act of the Misconduct in the District Discipline Handbook. Please remind your child to let the staff know of any problems arising between students.

# Grading System:

The primary purpose of grading is to keep parents and students fully informed of a student's progress. The following grading scale is used to assess and report students' academic achievement. Preschool students are assessed three times a year using Teaching Strategies Gold. This assessment rates each students' development and learning through preschool. Preschool teachers also send home progress reports detailing student's individual growth both developmentally and academically.

Kindergarten through First grade students are assessed using a standards-based progress report and report cards. This type of report card lists the Common Core State Standards (CCSS) students learn in each subject at a particular grade. Students receive a number rating that correlates with how they are progressing in each standard.

Classroom grades for Second through 8<sup>th</sup> students are updated in PowerSchool on a weekly basis by classroom teachers. Parents are responsible for checking PowerSchool on a regular basis to stay informed of their child's academic progress. Parents/Guardians are encouraged to call at any time to set up additional conferences to discuss their child's progress.

Seventy percent (70%) of the grade consists of tests, quizzes, projects, independent class work. Thirty percent (30%) of the grade consists of homework. Grades will appear as A's through F's with the percentage grade next to the letter.

Honor roll is achieved when a student's grade point average is 3.0-3.5. The student cannot have any grades lower than a "B" on the report card. This award is based on the total grade point average for the grading period. To make the honor roll, a student must meet the following criteria:

- 1. Must be in a reading and math grade level text.
- 2. Achieve a minimum of 83% average in reading, math, English, social studies, science, spelling, and health.
- 3. Achieve commendable or satisfactory marks in effort and citizenship.
- 4. Achieve A or B, or commendable or satisfactory grade in all other reported areas.

Outstanding academic achievement status will be awarded to students whose report card grade point average is 3.6-4.0. The student cannot have any grades lower than a "B" on the report card.

Taft School Grading Scale		
Grading Scale	Student	
100 - 100% = 5	Exceeding	
83 - 99% = 4	Meeting	
74 - 82% = 3	Approaching	
61 – 73% = 2	Making Progress	
0 - 60% = 1	Needs Improvement	

Eisenhower & Madison School Grading Scale

Grading Scale	Student
92 - 100% = A	Displays Excellent Achievement/Effort
$83 - 91\% = \mathbf{B}$	Displays Satisfactory Achievement/Effort
74 - 82% = C	Needs Improvement
65 - 73% = D	Works Below Expectations
64% = F	Below

Coolidge Middle School Grading Scale		
Grading Scale	Student	
93 - 100% = A	Displays Excellent Achievement/Effort	
86-92% = B	Displays Satisfactory Achievement/Effort	
78 - 85% = C	Needs Improvement	
70 - 77% = D	Works Below Expectations	
69% = F	Below	

Students at Coolidge Middle School are assigned to homerooms by grade level. The homeroom teacher is one who is responsible for knowing, planning with, and otherwise assisting his/her students. Parents should feel free to contact the homeroom teacher if problems should occur.

Grades and participation in sports and extracurricular activities at Coolidge Middle School:

- Anyone participating in sports must maintain a grade point average according to IHSA rules or they cannot participate.
- Afterschool groups or club sponsors have the authority to refuse students' participation due to lack of academic achievement.

## **Graduation Requirements:**

In addition to passing Core and Academic Support Classes, all students must demonstrate competency in the areas of the Federal and State constitutions and receive passing grades on both the Federal and State constitution tests. These tests are required for 8th grade students as they are required by the state. Students are also required to write a research paper as part of their graduation requirements. Students must complete the research paper with a passing grade, and the paper must be submitted by the designated deadline communicated to students and parents. Students cannot graduate until all requirements have been successfully completed.

# **Graduation Ceremony and Activities:**

Participation in the graduation ceremony and activities is considered an honor and not a right. Students can be barred from participation if his/her behavior does not reflect the level of Coolidge standards. The minimum step level required is a cumulative average of 1.5 or higher for participation in the graduation ceremony and graduation activities/field trips.

# **Homework/Home Projects:**

Homework is the extension of class work. It is a vital part of each student's educational program and learning process. This is the time when students work individually, and practice learned skills.

Students and their parents/guardians have a responsibility for the student's mastery of the subject matter. The learning process is a joint effort. Homework and/or individual study units will be discussed fully in the classroom so that parents are not required to give instruction. The teacher will provide the instruction.

#### Homework may consist of:

- 1. Extended practice lessons are already covered in the classroom.
- 2. Carry-over assignments which are papers that students did not complete in class.
- 3. Completion of daily assignments begun in class or to be completed entirely at home.
- 4. Projects, book reports, or study for tests to be completed over a period of several days.

#### **Guidelines**:

- It is expected that most students will be able to complete homework requirements within the following daily time frames.
  - Preschool students do not have homework, but participation in family projects is encouraged.
  - Kindergarten, First and Second Grade approximately 15 30 minutes
  - Third Grade approximately 30 45 minutes
  - $4^{\text{th}} 5^{\text{th}}$  Grade approximately 30 60 minutes

If the student regularly works beyond the upper limits of the time frames, despite their effort, parents should contact the classroom teacher, so that reasonable solutions can be discussed.

Students will keep track of their assignments in a provided homework assignment book. It is the student's responsibility to copy the daily assignments in the assignment book. Teachers will write assignments on the board for students to copy in their assignment books. A specific time of the day is scheduled for students to copy assignments with the teacher's assistance. Students are expected (after an orientation period) to maintain their assignment books independently.

- Homework should be neat not sloppy.
- Students are to do homework on their own and ask for help only after they have given the work their best effort.

Homework assignments will be graded and do affect the academic and citizenship grades. Unfinished assignments also affect the grade. Make-up late assignments will be accepted at the discretion of the classroom teacher. (Special arrangements will be made for assignments missed due to illness.)

#### Standard:

- 1. Neatness
- 2. Correct Spelling
- 3. Legible Handwriting
- 4. Accuracy
- 5. Timeliness (During illness, the student or parent can call for assignments. The student has one day to make-up for each day of absence).
- 6. Pencils, Blue or Black Ink, for appropriate grade
- 7. White, Regular Ruled Loose-Leaf Paper
- 8. School Heading

#### Note:

Teachers will write assignments on the board for students to copy in their assignment books. A specific time of day is scheduled for students to copy assignments with teacher's assistance. Students are expected (after an orientation period) to maintain their assignment books independently. Accepting late work is at the discretion of the grade level; it can be at the discretion of the teacher; however, it cannot be habitual.

#### Identification (Coolidge Middle School):

All students at Coolidge Middle School are expected to wear school IDs during school hours (including field trips). IDs serve several purposes, they are a matter of safety and security, contain lunch bar codes, as well as being a preparatory tool for transitioning into high school. Parents are encouraged to remind students of the need to have IDs on and displayed outside the clothing each day. There is no cost for the issuance of IDs the first time. However, there is a \$1.00 fee for receiving a temporary ID for the day a student arrives at school without his/her ID. If the ID is permanently lost or destroyed, a replacement fee must be paid. Referrals and suspension will be given if this becomes a common occurrence.

#### **Kindergarten:**

Taft School offers the District Kindergarten Program. It is a full day program from 8:30 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. The Kindergarten Program is academically oriented and requires students to meet the learner outcomes listed on the following page in this manual for promotion to first grade. Parents may request their child attend Kindergarten on a half day basis. Children who attend on a half-day basis will attend from 8:30 a.m. to 11:15 a.m. A bus service will be provided for students who meet the transportation eligibility requirements. It is also important to note that some children may not be able to fully benefit from a full day program due to fatigue, concentration, or development immaturity. In those cases, the Principal will meet with parents and modify the full day to a half day morning program.

# Library:

The library is open on a regularly scheduled basis and is supervised by the classroom teacher or library aide. Library classes are held for the purpose of library instruction as well as the enjoyment of the materials and books.

Students can use the library during library hours with the permission of their classroom teacher. They may use the library to read, do reference work, or to work on special projects. Each student may check out

one or two books for a period of one week at a time. There are no fines for overdue books, but lost or damaged books must be paid for.

The school encourages recreational reading and utilizes the Phoenix Reading Contest, Book It, and "Read to Succeed" to encourage, recognize, and reward participating students.

#### **Newsletter:**

The **Biweekly District Newsletter Events (BIDE)** is the District's vehicle used to communicate information to our parents and community members. Its purpose is to inform the subscribers about the activities and events taking place in our schools as well as the surrounding communities.

#### **National Junior Honor Society:**

The National Junior Honor Society has a chapter at Coolidge; TIGERS XL, is a national organization which has worked to bring the academic, moral, and leadership accomplishments of the students to the attention of their classmates, parents, and communities. Membership in the local chapter is an honor bestowed upon outstanding students who meet the following qualifications:

- 1. Scholarship
- 2. Character
- 3. Leadership
- 4. Citizenship
- 5. Service

Membership is open to 7<sup>th</sup> and 8<sup>th</sup> grade students. The candidates must have attended Coolidge for at least one semester. (Report Card must have all A's and B's).

#### **Parent – Teacher Conferences:**

Formal Parent-Teacher Conferences will be held twice this school year. We encourage all parents to come and talk to their child's teacher.

Additional parent-teacher conferences will be arranged when requested by the parent or the teacher. A conference cannot be scheduled during a teacher's instructional time. Appointments can be arranged before or after school, or during a teacher's planning time. Please call the school to make an appointment.

#### **Parent Teacher Organization (PTO):**

Cooperation between home and school is a positive and vital influence on student's behavior and learning. Parents and school staff share ideas for working with students at home and at school. Please check the School Calendar for meeting dates.

#### **Parent Volunteers:**

School District 151 considers its parent volunteers a very special resource. Parents are encouraged to help in all classrooms, programs, and extra-curricular activities. Please call the school office if you have time or skills to donate to make our school a better place to learn and grow or contact your child's teacher. Parental involvement in your child's education is the key to success.

## **Physical Education:**

All children may participate in physical education classes or special activities for a child who may have a physical condition which prevents him/her from fully participating in the regular physical education classes. If there are restrictions on activities for a child, it should be stated in the child's health file and/or a doctor's note stating those restrictions.

The physical education program provides students with the opportunity to develop physical skills and team concepts.

Excuses from physical education classes for less than one week can be granted upon written notice from parents. Prolonged excuse from physical education classes will be permitted only with a doctor's note.

In addition to the PE program, each student will receive six weeks of instruction in health. The students will be taught this curriculum in lieu of physical education classes.

At Taft students have PE daily. Students are required to wear gym shoes or bring a pair in their bookbag. Shorts should be worn under dresses, or the child may be excluded from PE for the day depending on the planned activity. Due to safety concerns, students without gym shoes will not be allowed to participate in PE for the day.

# **Gym Uniforms:**

Regular school clothing is satisfactory for physical education activities except for Coolidge Middle School. Coolidge students are required to wear a gym uniform for gym classes. This is a part of their gym/P.E. grade. Girls wearing skirts or dresses must wear shorts for gym. All students must wear appropriate gym shoes for gym classes.

**Important note:** Dressing appropriately for gym does factor into each child's overall physical education grade each quarter.

#### **Pictures:**

School pictures are taken twice a year. In the fall and spring, you will receive a flyer indicating the cost of these pictures. Only students with prepaid orders will have pictures taken in the spring.

School District 151 takes pictures of students and staff members for the purpose of highlighting school events in various school publications. We also submit photos to local newspapers for publication.

Graduation pictures are only for 8th grade students.

## AI, Plagiarism, and Cheating:

Webster's New Explorer Dictionary (1999) defines plagiarism as; the presentation of ideas or words of another as one's own. See any teacher for a fuller explanation of plagiarism.

Students who plagiarize and/or use Artificial Intelligence (AI) will receive academic and/or disciplinary actions as determined by the severity of the offence. Students who copy the homework, assignments, or tests of another student are guilty of cheating, a form of plagiarism.

### **Positive Behavior Intervention System**

#### Taft

The goal of Taft School is to implement and sustain a positive behavior management system while applying positive intervention techniques. When students are caught modeling positive character traits, they can earn Taft Dollars from staff members. Students can save or redeem their Taft Dollars to purchase items from the Taft Store.

#### Eisenhower

Eisenhower's Tier I behavior system is CHAMPS. CHAMPS focuses on teaching and reinforcing positive behaviors throughout the school. Our guidelines for success at Eisenhower are safe, respectful, and responsible behavior expectations.

#### Madison

Positive Behavior Intervention System (PBIS) focuses on promoting positive pro-social behavior through explicitly stating and reminding students of the positive behavior expected at Madison School. When students are caught modeling this behavior teachers issue a PBIS ticket. The students can save their earned tickets but must cash/exchange them before the expiration date. The tickets can be used to purchase items in the "school store."

### **Preschool Program:**

Taft School has a state-sponsored **Preschool for ALL Program** for children three and four years-of-age. Screenings will be held during the school year to determine eligibility. If classrooms are full, then children will be placed on a waiting list for the next available placement in the classroom. Call the District Office at 708-339-1516 to inquire about the enrollment process.

Our Early Childhood Program is affiliated with the Family Enrichment Program which is part of the Exceptional Children Have Opportunities (ECHO) Joint Agreement. Parents with children ages zero to three are encouraged to take advantage of this free program. The program reviews with parents' developmental milestones of children in this age range. For more information call (708) 841-5950 or check out their website at www.echoja.org/fep/.

### **Promotion and Retention:**

Regular attendance and consistent/persistent effort will usually assure students of completing the course of study for each grade. Students who, for whatever reason, have not sufficiently learned the material for a given grade may be retained in the grade for another year. Parents will be notified as early as possible when a student is in danger of being retained. Retention of a student is decided on an individual basis. Factors that enter retaining a student include poor attendance, excessive tardiness, failure to complete assignments, lack of effort, failure to demonstrate growth in knowledge and skills, and other factors. These qualities are assessed periodically and reported to parents in progress reports. Parents should be alert of a change in performance that may signal the possibility of their child being retained.

Students who are absent eighteen (18) or more days of school may be retained in the current grade unless extenuating circumstances causing the absences (hospital confinement, quarantine

by doctor, etc.) The eighteen (18) days are allowed for normal illnesses and childhood diseases such as colds, flu, chicken pox, etc.

Students shall not be promoted to the next higher-grade level based upon age or any other social reason unrelated to academic performance.

Decisions to promote or retain a student in any class shall be based upon:

- 1. Successful completion of the curriculum.
- 2. Attendance.
- 3. Performance based upon Standardized Assessments and/or other appropriate testing; and
- 4. Any other criteria established by the Board of Education.

Students determined to be unqualified for promotion to the next higher grade shall be provided remedial assistance, which may include, but is not limited to, one of the following:

- 1. Intersession interventions (3) throughout the year for those students receiving two or more D's or F's in the core subjects.
- 2. Tutorial sessions.
- 3. Increased or concentrated instruction time.
- 4. Modifications to instructional materials; and
- 5. Retention in grade.

TAFT students will be evaluated on the following criteria:

- Successful completion of the curriculum
- Attendance
- Scores average or above for AIMS Web assessments.
- Scores average or above for the MAP assessments
- Running Record/ Leveled Reading
- Any other criteria established by the Board of Education.

**PRESCHOOL** students do not have promotion criteria. Students will be exposed to routines and procedures of school along with academic areas appropriate for their age. Developmental growth will be monitored and reported.

<u>**COOLIDGE</u>**: Any student failing two or more core subjects (Language Arts, Math, Science, Social Studies) will be eligible for academic retention with notification to the parents.</u>

Legal Reference: Section 10-20.9a of the School Code Approved: July 6, 1998 South Holland School District 151 Board Policy on Retention is included in the District General Information and Calendar Handbook.

Any student with less than a (1.0) "D" grade point average in any two subjects, Core or Academic Support Classes, by the end of the 3<sup>rd</sup> grade period, will be eligible for academic retention with notification to the parents. However, if a parent has been notified during the school year that the child had the possibility of being retained, and the grades in the 4<sup>th</sup> grading period reflect less than a 1.0 grade average, this too will be the basis for academic retention.

### **Quality of Work:**

Students are expected to maintain a high quality of performance in all their assignments. The elements that determine performance quality include:

- 1. Students follow assignment directions.
- 2. Work is done neatly.
- 3. Spelling, punctuation, capitalization, etc. are done correctly on written assignments.
- 4. Work represents the student's best effort.
- 5. Work is handed in on time.
- 6. Assignments are done with a high degree of accuracy.
- 7. Work is the student's own.
- 8. Work meets or exceeds the intended curriculum purpose.

### **Recess:**

Weather permitting; students are given recess each day at Taft, Eisenhower, and Madison. Decisions to have outside recess during cold weather depend on the temperature and the wind chill factor. Students go outside when the temperature and wind chill factor is above 20 degrees. Always dress your child for outside recess. However, at Taft and Eisenhower schools outdoor recess is held if the "real feel" is 32 degrees or above. If there are restrictions on activities for a child, it should be stated in the child's health file and/or a doctor's note stating those restrictions.

### **Remote Learning:**

If at any time the district/school must switch to remote learning, students must be visible, present, and active in ALL classes, for the entire class; or students will be marked absent. If students have any technical difficulties, parents must immediately report these difficulties to the school.

### **Step Sheet Behavior System (Ladders to Success):**

The purpose of Ladders to Success is to provide students with an up-to-date evaluation of their behavior in school. The more responsibility and appropriately a student performs, the more privileges are awarded. Students are expected to keep a written record of their performance each week and turn it into their teacher advisor at the end of the week. Step sheets must be signed by a parent/guardian each Thursday and returned to school on Friday.

#### COOLIDGE 3+:

All students begin the school year at step three 3+ at Coolidge. If a student with a 3+ step sheet level receives one (1) check on his/her step sheet, that one check will cause the step sheet level to drop one level. They will move up or down based on their demonstrated level of responsibility.

#### **EVALUATIONS**

All students will be evaluated in the

following areas:

- " Classroom behavior
- " Class preparation
- " Hallway behavior
- " General behavior

#### **OTHER INFRACTIONS**:

- " Refusal to give step sheet to staff Drop to Level 0
- " Any suspension Drop to Level 0
- " Defacement Drop to Level 0
- "Not in possession of step sheet when asked for it because of an infraction: Drop 1 level; If this is a consistent practice – Drop 2 levels

Coolidge Middle School Rubric							
CHECKS	REMAIN	MOVE UP	MOVE DOWN				
0 - 2		Move up 1 level					
3 - 4	Remain at current level	Consultation with team/counselor					
5			Drop 1 level				
6			Drop 2 levels				
7			Drop 3 levels				
8			Drop to level 0				

Madison School Rubric							
CHECKS	REMAIN	MOVE UP	MOVE DOWN				
1-3	Remain at current level						
4-6			Drop 1 level				
7+			Drop 2 levels				

Step Sheet rules: • Lost step sheet = go down 2 levels	• D-F levels with 1-2 checks can move up one level C-B with No checks can move up one level
• To be on an A = B and NO checks (clean step sheet)	
<ul> <li>Unsigned step sheet = go down levels</li> </ul>	

# **Student Recognition:**

Students receive special recognition at the school through a variety of awards programs. These awards are intended to promote and recognize academic skills, achievement and good citizenship and effort. Teachers and parents are expected to promote these awards as an encouragement and incentive toward special effort and achievement by students. Recognition is given for academics, participation in a variety of programs and activities, citizenship, and attendance.

{Each school has an award system based upon their specific criteria.}

# **Reader of the Month:**

At *Eisenhower School*, each month teachers select one student from their class who has shown a love for reading. These students receive a certificate and a special breakfast with the principal.

# **Student of the Month:**

#### <u>Madison</u>

Each month teachers select one student from their class who has exhibited that month's character trait. Students are rewarded with a certificate.

#### **Eisenhower**

Teachers select one child each month that exemplifies safe, respectful, and responsible behaviors. Students of the month attend a catered breakfast with the principal at the end of each quarter.

# **Study Skills:**

A parent can help his/her child be aware of skills and techniques which make learning easier and more enjoyable. The following are student guidelines for achieving good study habits:

1. Come to class prepared with pencil, paper, and other necessary supplies.

- 2. Be an active participant in class. Listen well and take part in class.
- 3. Ask questions to clarify problems.
- 4. Plan your day and schedule time for homework.
- 5. Use what is learned and apply it to new situations.
- 6. Strive to do the very best work possible. Just "getting by" is not a worthwhile goal.

### Washroom Use:

Madison and Coolidge

Students should use the washroom before going to lunch. Washroom use is not permitted between classes. Washroom use is not permitted without a pass from the teacher. Please remember other students will be using the washroom after you – please leave it in clean condition. If an extreme emergency occurs, a teacher may issue a pass to a student. Students at Coolidge will follow a schedule for the restroom.

Taft and Eisenhower

Classroom teachers take students on scheduled bathroom breaks (one in the morning and one in the afternoon). If a child requests to use the washroom during class time they are permitted to go by the teacher. If a child must use the washroom frequently due to health issues, a doctor's note must be provided.

# **Support Programs and Services**

# Assistance:

Assistance is available to students through Title I classes in reading and math for identified students.

# **Character Education:**

Character education is part of our regular curriculum that focuses on teaching good social skills. Students are taught skills that help them do better in school, have a good relationship with others, make friends; and manage their feelings. The skills can be used at school and at home. Parents are encouraged to be aware of the skills being practiced during the week and encourage their child to practice the skill at home.

# **English Language Learning Education**

Under IL School Code Article 14C. RULE ILL. ADM. Code 228, all public schools are to have a process in place for identifying and servicing English language Learning (ELL). The following is our identification and screening procedures for English Learners (EL).

- During registration, parents will take a Home Language Survey (HLS) if their child is entering our district for the first time.
- Students identified as potential English Learners (ELs) by the HLS should be screened within 30 days of enrollment in the district.
- The screening results determine the students EL status.
- Student identified as an EL must be placed in EL services immediately.

- Within 30 days after enrollment or if school has started 14 days after enrollment, parents must be notified of qualifications and placement.
- The notification describes the program placement, services, exit, and parent rights, including option for refusal.
- Students are updated in the State's Student Information System.
- All students who were initially screened in preschool must be screened again upon entering kindergarten.
- Current ELs in Kindergarten to Grade 8 should not be re-screened.

Screener	When administered	Domains Assessed	Minimum Score for EL Proficiency
Pre-IPT	Preschool Screening	Listening, Speaking	5 (E) oral composite of listening and speaking
WIDA Screener for Kindergarten	K (1st semester)	Listening, Speaking	5.0 (oral composite of listening and speaking)
WIDA Screener For Kindergarten	K (2nd Semester) and 1st grade (1st semester)	Listening, Speaking, Reading, Writing	5.0 Overall Composite
WIDA Online SCREENER	1st grade (2nd semester) – 12th grade	Listening, Speaking, Reading, Writing	5.0 Overall Composite

#### Screening materials used:

Students that qualify for the English Language Learning program are placed in a program where they will receive English and or Bilingual supports to support their English Language development and academic Learning. Once a year, students will take a State required English language proficiency test called Assessing Comprehension and Communication in English from State to State (ACCESS test). All identified ELs are required to take this assessment which is given in January.

#### **Declining services**

To refuse language support services, parents must provide the district with a dated and signed, written statement that they are refusing services. However, this parental statement does not relinquish the district from its obligation to provide a meaningful education to the student and to continue to annually assess the student's language proficiency with the ACCESS for ELLs. The district will communicate the ACCESS results and program options to the parents on an annual basis. If the parent does not indicate a change in services, the refusal remains active.

#### **Program Types**

According to the rules and regulations of the state, we are required to have a Transitional Bilingual Education Program (TBE program) and/or a Transitional Program of Instruction (TPI program). Both programs are similar in that we are teaching students to transition into English so they can have the same core education as everyone. The biggest difference between the two is that the TBE program requires native language support in instruction if the attendance center has 19 or more students that speak the same language. If the attendance center has 19 or fewer students speaking the same language, TPI program is

required. A TPI program does not require native language support due to the number of students that may need English Language support.

The Bilingual Parent Advisory Committee (BPAC) ISBE 23 Article 228.30 of Illinois School Code states: "Each district shall establish a parent advisory committee (BPAC) consisting of:

- Parents and/or legal guardians
- ELL Teachers
- Counselors
- Community Leaders

Many of the committee members shall be parents or legal guardians of students enrolled in the bilingual program. Members on this committee shall be a representative of the languages served (Spanish) in the ELL program to the extent possible."

We know that parents and community members are a part of making great schools. This is what the BPAC is all about. It is the community working together to create the best learning collaboration possible. The BPAC is an especially important part of our ELL services here at South Holland School District 151. This committee helps staff, parents, and the community to advocate for our students that may speak another language other than English. The following are some of the key responsibilities of our BPAC team.

Objectives of the BPAC team

- Establish a clear and collaborative voice between the bilingual community of the ELL program and South Holland School District 151.
- Promote and encourage respectful parental participation in educational academic programs for our children.
- Promote parent training so they can support their children with schoolwork.
- Conduct a bilingual program network that promotes and supports cultural events.
- Collaborate with other parent organizations (PTO) or school teams in supporting students.

### McKinney-Vento: Federal homeless education legislation

The McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act ensures the educational rights and protection of homeless children and youth so that they may enroll in school, attend regularly, and be successful. The legislation requires a local homeless education liaison in every school district to assist children and unaccompanied youth in their efforts to attend school. This act guarantees homeless children and youth the following:

- The right to immediate enrollment in school, even if lacking paperwork normally required for enrollment.
- The right to attend school in his/her school of origin (if this is requested by the parent and is feasible) or in the school in the attendance area where the family or youth is currently residing.
- The right to receive transportation to his/her school of origin if the parent requests this.
- The right to services comparable to those received by housed schoolmates, including transportation and supplemental educational services.

- The right to attend school along with children not experiencing homelessness. Segregation based on a student's status as homeless is strictly prohibited.
- The posting of homeless students' rights in all schools and other places around the community.
- While having the opportunity to enroll and succeed in school may seem like a given to many of us, the McKinney-Vento Act was enacted due to the numerous barriers homeless children faced in obtaining a free, appropriate, public education. It is the goal of South Holland School District 151 to create public awareness of the rights of homeless children and youth and to ensure compliance with the law at the state and local levels.

If you have questions regarding homeless status and provision of educational services, please contact the District 151 District Office at 708-339-4517 and connect with the Student Services Department. The District McKinney-Vento Liaison is the Director of Student Services.

### Peer Mediation/Conflict Resolution/Character Education:

School District 151's Peer Mediation/Conflict Resolution/Character Education Program is a contemporary method of handling and solving peer conflicts by utilizing natural resources or peer pressure. Conflicts between students are heard by trained student mediators, monitored by an adult staff person who helps both sides come to a mutually agreeable compromise, therefore, resolving the conflict.

Peer Mediation engages both the mediator and the students having conflict in a positive democratic process. In addition, Peer Mediation empowers students to become actively involved in resolution of their own disputes and eradicates or at least lessens suspensions and its negative results. Peer Mediation at Coolidge Middle School is proven to be an effective and frequently sought alternative used by students to solve peer conflicts.

### **Playground Supervision:**

Students have access to the playground areas before school each morning and during lunch recess each afternoon. Lunch recess will be 30 minutes in length. Adult supervisors are on duty at recess.

Note: Taft students do not have access to the playground before school. Adult Supervision begins at 8:15 a.m. Students immediately enter the building at that time.

Note: Eisenhower students do not have access to the playground before or after school. Adult Supervision (front of building, not the playground) begins at 8:20 a.m. At least three adults are scheduled on the playground during lunch recess.

Whether students go outside is dependent on precipitation, temperature, and wind chill. During inclement weather students will remain in their rooms for recess playing quiet games and chatting quietly with friends. (Students can bring board games for use during bad weather).

Students should report to their assigned playground area immediately upon entering the school grounds in the morning and at recess.

#### Cars are not allowed to enter or leave the parking lot during recess.

Rules:

- 1. Rough playing is not allowed. No wrestling, pulling, pushing, holding, kicking, karate, etc.
- 2. Boys and girls have separate play areas and should stay in those areas.
- 3. Organized grade-level games are assigned areas on the blacktop and should be played only in those areas.
- 4. Obey playground boundaries. (Do not leave the playground at any time for any reason).
- 5. Do not interfere in other children's games.
- 6. Cursing, swearing, or name calling is not allowed on playground areas.
- 7. Take turns on playground equipment. Students using swings are limited to 20 swings before giving another student a turn. Lines are to form for each swing.
- 8. Report to the supervisors on duty:
  - a. Personal injuries.
  - b. If you need to re-enter the building.
  - c. Problems with others.
  - d. If a piece of playground equipment (ball, etc.) goes off the playground.
- 9. Be respectful of the supervisors on duty.
- 10. No gum, candy, or food is allowed during recess.
- 11. Return all equipment used at the end of recess.
- 12. When the first bell rings, stop playing and walk to the line-up area.
- 13. At the second bell, you must be in a straight and quiet line. NO TALKING!

### Reading and Math intervention services known as Response to Intervention (RtI)

School District 151 implemented RtI in the 2008-2009 school year, a data driven decision-making model for improving reading and math skills. It is a comprehensive three tier reading intervention model to enable identification and programming for students based upon their reading proficiency.

### Safety:

There is absolutely no running in or around the building except during supervised physical education and recess activities. Students will refrain from running in the hallways during school hours and at dismissal as well as to and from the bus.

Children should be urged to return home immediately after school. Loitering children occasionally get into unsafe situations. Parents are asked to remind their children not to accept rides or gifts from strangers.

Problems arise each school year because children bring to school articles that are hazardous or which interfere with school procedures. Knives, toy guns, bean shooters, headset radios or records, iPods, cellular phones, CD's, electronic games, baseball bats, trading cards, hardballs, etc. should **not** be brought to school. These articles will be confiscated by school officials and will be returned only to the parents. Dangerous items or "look-a-likes" brought to school may result in suspensions, expulsions, and/or police involvement.

### Search and Seizure:

While desks and lockers are provided to the students by the school, the school retains control and access to all desks and lockers. All property of the school as well as their contents may be searched or inspected at any time without notice. Authorized school personnel have the right to search these structures as well as any containers, book bags, purses, or articles of clothing that are left unattended on school property.

The school retains the right to and will search for and seize drugs, weapons, and other contraband when there is a belief that such contraband is in the possession of a student. This may include the use of police dogs in such searches. Such possession is in violation of the laws enacted by local, state, and federal governments. Students who possess such contraband will be subject to the discipline code of the district. The school will assist local authorities by reporting such possessions, and the school will cooperate fully with police and other government authorities in investigating and prosecuting any student in violation of the law.

# **Social Networks:**

During this age of social network systems such as smart phones, cell phones, Facebook, Twitter, Vine, Instagram, and other networks, it is extremely necessary for parents to exercise caution by periodically monitoring the social network systems our children have access to. It is illegal for any child under the age of thirteen to use Facebook, or other such social networks. However, students are using these sites to post inappropriate writings and pictures. Even though these actions have taken place outside of the school building, they have caused major disruptions within the school year. The outcome of these types of infractions will be met with referrals and suspensions. Repetitious or severe behaviors will result in alternative placement.

# **Student and Parents Responsibilities:**

As the school years progress, students experience increased levels of independence. This is a major step toward adulthood. Students must recognize, however, that as they acquire more freedom, they must also accept more responsibility. Students are expected to meet the following basic responsibilities.

#### IT IS THE STUDENT'S RESPONSIBILITY TO:

- ✤ Learn.
- Come to school every day and be on time.
- Complete daily assignments.
- Always come to class with his/her supplies and assignments.
- ✤ Ask his/her teacher for help.
- ✤ Help care for books, supplies and all school property.
- ✤ Obey all school rules.
- Obey all teachers and staff.
- Use acceptable and appropriate language. Refrain from using libel, slanderous remarks, and obscenities in verbal and written expression.
- ✤ Make sure he/she is neat, clean, and appropriately dressed.
- Be fair and kind to other students.
- Resolve conflicts peacefully through problem solving.
- ✤ Act in a way that will help all students to learn.
- ✤ Treat others with respect.

- Maintain the best possible exercise of authority by school administrators, teacher, and staff as they strive to maintain discipline in the school and at school sponsored activities.
- \* Know and follow the rules and regulations established by the Board of Education.

#### IT IS THE PARENT'S RESPONSIBILITY TO:

- See that your child attends school regularly and is not tardy.
- Understand the duties of the teachers and administrators who are responsible for your child during the school day.
- Support the rules of the school, the district, and the community.
- Safeguard your child's health by making certain that he/she goes to the doctor and dentist regularly.
- Attending school conferences and other activities.
- Plan a time and place, with supervision, for your child to do homework.
- Talk with your child and the teacher about school and report cards.
- Cooperate with the school regarding the Discipline Code.
- Teach your child the value of obtaining an education through individual effort.
- Respect all staff and students.

### **Substitute Teachers:**

Every student will periodically be taught by a substitute teacher. The most common reason for using substitute teachers occurs when the regular teacher is ill. However, substitutes are also used when regular teachers are on leave for personal business, professional training, or family emergencies. Students are expected to be extra courteous to substitute teachers. Any misconduct in the classroom will be dealt with immediately.

# **Tag-a-Long:**

Students on errands or missions in the building have no reason to have a "partner" with them, unless specifically authorized by school personnel.

# **Telephone Usage:**

The building phones are used for business calls only. It is not to be used by students, except in an emergency. Students are not allowed to use the phone to make personal arrangements such as:

- requesting permission to stay after school for an activity.
- requesting to go to another child's home after school.
- calling parents to remind them of something such as trip permission slips.
- asking for a ride home
- asking parents to bring lunch to school.

# Valuables:

School administrators and staff members cannot be responsible for valuables which students bring to school. It is recommended that students leave all valuables at home.

Students should not be given large sums of money to bring to school. If you give your child money for any reason, please put the money in an envelope and write your child's name, room number, and purpose for which the money is sent on the envelope. Money should never be left in desks or coat pockets. The school reserves the right to inspect student desks, storage areas, book bags, and purses.

Students are not allowed to bring electronic games to school. If the student brings an electronic game to the school, the school assumes no responsibility and will not be involved with related issues.

### **Video Taping Penalties:**

Students are not permitted to make a video record or transmit live video. See Video Taping Penalties in the Responsibilities and Rights Discipline Handbook.

### **Visitor's Information:**

#### Appointments with Staff/Classroom Observations

We have an "open door" policy. Parents are encouraged to visit our schools. You are welcome to visit your child's class to observe. However, instruction should not be interrupted for conferences with teachers. Our teachers are most willing to make an appointment with you at a time when they can give your concerns/observations their undivided attention if you wish to have an individual conference.

Stopping to see the teacher as students enter in the morning or at dismissal time is disruptive to our orderly opening and closing routines and is therefore not encouraged.

However, conferences before school starts or after students have been dismissed can certainly be scheduled by prior arrangement with your child's teacher.

*Building guest register*: For safety and security reasons, we request <u>ALL</u> visitors in our school to sign in and out at the office and receive a pass badge. PLEASE ENTER THE BUILDING THROUGH THE FRONT DOOR ONLY.

### Your Rights:

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act requires that schools inform parents/guardians of the types of records maintained by the school district. The following records are kept on all students: health record, permanent record card, standardized test information card, and attendance record.

### **Special Education:**

Our special education program follows stated and federal requirements that places a student in their least restrictive environment using an inclusion model. This means that we place a student in the classroom that is closest to a general education environment before moving them to a different classroom that is more restrictive.

who have an IEP are taught at their functional level in their least restrictive environment according to the guidelines of their IEP. Students who are new to the district will have an intake meeting which is a me meeting to meet the parents and discuss the previous goals from the last

school and make any changes that are necessary. During this meeting the student is placed in the appropriate environment according to the IEP that is provided to district which includes co-taught, self-contained, out of district placement and any related services that they need (speech, occupational therapy, physical therapy) Students who do not have an IEP can be referred to domain through the PST process or parent request for writing. All requests are reviewed by the office of Special Services and are responded to in 10 school days determining if the student requires an IEP evaluation.

### Section 504:

Section 504 is a federal law and part of the American with Disabilities Act designed to protect the rights of individuals with disabilities in programs and activities that receive Federal funding from the U.S. Department of Education. Section 504 provides: "No otherwise qualified individual with a disability in the United States shall, solely by reason of her or his disability, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance".

The school district must provide a free appropriate public education to district students who are eligible under Section 504. Instruction must be individually designed to meet the needs of those students as adequately as the needs of students without disabilities. An appropriate education under Section 504 requires that the services be effective and fair.

Although Section 504 does not require schools to develop an Individualized Education Program with annual goals, the school does provide written documentation for each student identified and provides accommodations and/or services under Section 504. If school staff suspects a need of accommodation, a referral should be made, evaluations conducted, and possible identification determined by a team knowledgeable about the student. If the student is identified, the team might develop a Section 504 Plan.

Section 504 is not an individualized education plan (IEP.) The school staff and parents should collaborate to help ensure that students are provided accommodations through general education.

Basic steps involved in obtaining 504 Plan:

- 1. Referral: A teacher, support staff, a parent, or a medical professional may refer the student for
- 2. Consideration, by contacting the school or the office of Special Services. The referral will be reviewed by the office of Special Services and a meeting date will be scheduled if appropriate.
- 3. Initial eligibility meeting: The Case manager or designee will review data (which includes medical documentation, concerns and any outside testing or doctors reports) to determine eligibility for a 504 and work with the building team and parent to create a 504 plan with necessary accommodations and modifications.
- 4. 504 plans are reviewed every three years to determine eligibility and updated as necessary with any new findings.

### **Speech Services:**

If any parent feels that their child may need help in speech development, they should contact their child's teacher or speak to the building Principal. Students who require speech assistance will be referred to the building PST process and receive Speech MTSS If appropriate.

### **Medication:**

Medication required by a student shall generally not be administered at school by a District employee. This includes even common aspirin and Tylenol. However, students recovering from temporary illness or students on permanent medication who require medication during the school day may bring medication to school following these guides:

The student's physician must provide written orders to the District specifying the student's name, the medication, the purpose of the medication, the necessity for the medication during the day, the type of disease or illness involved, the correct dosage, the time medication is to be administered, the benefits of the medication, any side effects, and an emergency number where physician can be reached. Forms can be obtained from the school office.

The student's parent or guardian must request in writing that the School District comply with the physician/s orders, indicating those persons who are authorized to administer the medication. The parent or guardian shall be requested to sign a written consent form where medication will be administered by administrative school employees rather than a certified school nurse. Forms can be obtained from the school office.

The prescription medication must be brought to the school in the original package or appropriately labeled container to the school by the student's parent or guardian in a pharmaceutical container. The container shall display:

- Student's name
- Prescription number
- Medication named and dosage
- o Administration route and/or other direction
- o Dates to be taken
- Licensed prescribers name
- Pharmacy name, address, and phone number

Medical Alert!!! If your child has asthma, you are required by law to complete a Student Medication Form. This form must be completed by the parents and the child's doctor and will be kept in the school's office. This will allow your child to use the inhaler as needed should an asthma attack occur. If your child takes medication at home, it is wise to inform the school of his/her health condition, especially in the case of asthma. In addition, you are asked to complete the Self-Administration of Asthma Medication Form.

# Technology

### **Internet Access:**

The School District has internet access in our computer lab and the classroom, if applicable. Every effort is made to ensure that this technology only be used for educational purposes to enhance the curriculum. Before a student may use the internet, parents and students must sign an acceptable use agreement. Please refer to the Responsible Use Policy in the District Discipline Handbook, policy #710.18.

#### SUMMARY OF TECHNOLOGY AND INTERNET USE GUIDELINES

#### (AS SET FORTH IN THE TECHNOLOGY HANDBOOK)

All accounts must be in support of education and research and be consistent with the educational objectives of South Holland School District 151.

YOU MAY LOSE ALL COMPUTER PRIVILEGES IF YOU:

1. Use someone else's login 2. Let someone else use your login 3. Violate any part of the Acceptable Use Policy

Bear in mind that you have \*NO EXPECTATION OF PRIVACY\*. This means that the District has the right to monitor, inspect, audit, collect, and remove ANY information from your account without permission or further notice.

REMEMBER – Using the District computer network is a privilege not a right. Please be judicious in your use of the network.

#### 1:1 STUDENT TECHNOLOGY DEVICE INFORMATION:

All students in grades K-8th will be issued an iPad or a Windows laptop for their educational use. The student will be issued a device, a protective carrying case, and a power adapter.

The District loans these devices to the student only for educational purposes during the academic year. The student will be held responsible for the proper care of the devices and accessories. The student will return the device prior to the end of the academic year.

The devices have a limited warranty covering normal use, mechanical breakdown, or faulty construction.

If a device is lost or damaged beyond repair, the student may be responsible for its cost. Those costs are no more than: device (\$500), device charger (\$25), device case/bag (\$25).

The student may receive additional technology supplies such as earbuds or headphones. These items are expected to last the entirety of the school year and are the responsibility of the student to replace them if lost or damaged. These items will be returned to the school with collection of the student device.

PLEASE NOTE:

The full version of the Technology Handbook is available on the District web site at www.shsd151.org under the INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES tab.

### **Transportation:**

Parents are encouraged to remain with their children while waiting for the bus to arrive. If there are questions regarding the route or stops along the way, please contact the school Assistant Principal. Students and parents are encouraged to notify the school immediately of any safety hazards which they have observed during bus operations.

All students are assigned an approximate pick-up time and drop-off time. Bus riders should be at the stop 10 minutes before the approximate pick-up time. Please wait 10 minutes after the approximate pick-up time if the bus is running late due to traffic. Buses load and leave the school in the order they arrive.

Therefore, actual drop-off time varies daily.

Taft School: At the beginning of the school year, all Taft students must have a guardian waiting at the bus stop for them. If no one is at the bus stop, the child will be returned to Taft, a guardian will be contacted, and the child will need to be picked up from the school immediately. An authorization form will be sent home with students during the first week of school. Kindergarten and first grade students with a completed authorization form will be allowed to get off the bus without parental supervision beginning in September. Preschool students always require adult supervision at the bus stop.

Transportation service is also provided for special education students if it is included in the student's Individualized Educational Program (IEP) or as otherwise required by law. All special education students will be transported in accordance with current Illinois State Board of Education rules and regulations and the Illinois School Code.

# **Bus Behavior:**

Students will take a Bus Safety class to learn safety rules, proper behavior, bus routines and evacuation drills. If the need arises, these classes are held throughout the year. It is strongly recommended that parents read and discuss with their child the rules related to conduct while riding the bus.

Bus routines and rules are designed to maintain safety for all – students, bus drivers, monitors, and drivers of private and commercial vehicles. While bus service is provided by the school district, it is also considered a privilege; the students are expected to be cooperative and respectful with and to the bus driver and fellow students by adhering to the established rules.

- 1. Use only the bus and the bus stops assigned.
- 2. Be on time at the assigned bus stop.
- 3. Orderly behavior is always required on the bus and at the bus stops.
- 4. Always stay off the road while waiting for the bus.
- 5. Do not move toward the bus until the bus has come to a full stop.
- 6. Do not push or shove.
- 7. Observe safety precautions when getting off the bus.

- 8. Remain seated in your assigned seat, facing the front when the bus is in motion.
- 9. Remain in your seat in case of an emergency and wait for directions from the bus driver.
- 10. Talk quietly and make no unnecessary noises.
- 11. Always keep your head and arms inside of the bus.
- 12. Be quiet when the bus is crossing the railroad tracks and when the driver is transmitting or receiving communications.
- 13. Do not litter inside the bus or throw anything outside the WINDOW.
- 14. Eating and drinking is not allowed on the bus or at the bus stop.
- 15. Keep objects inside your book bag.
- 16. Do not tamper with the bus or any of its equipment.
- 17. Keep books, packages, coats, and feet out of the aisle.
- 18. Bus videos and audios are not available to parents per Illinois School Code.

Infractions of the above rules will result in warnings or denial of bus transportation (**bus suspension**). Continual abuse of bus privileges will result in longer term denial of bus transportation. Infractions that occur on the bus, in route to or from school, or at bus stops, will result in suspension from school and/or the bus. Bus rules and consequences are listed in the District 151 Discipline Handbook.

# **Bus Routes and Operating Procedures:**

Bus routes and stops are planned and established by the school administration and the bus company. Safety, economy, efficiency, and allocation of resources are some of the considerations which must be evaluated in determining bus operation policies. Parents who wish to make requests for changes in routes or stops should contact the school's assistant principal. Please be aware that to change your student's bus stop due to an address change, you must first update your address at the District Office. See "Registration & Residency" found in this handbook. Students and parents are encouraged to notify the school immediately of any safety hazards which they have observed during bus operations.

Buses are assigned according to residential address. Therefore, students can only ride the bus assigned to the student according to the residential address. Students cannot ride the bus of their choice. This will result in a bus suspension. Requests for bus and bus stop changes MAY only be fulfilled for stops closer to a student's residence.

Board policy 435 requires all bus stops to be assigned to the closest stop to the parent's residence.

# South Holland School District School Board Policies

# **Gangs and Gang Activity Policy 715.10**

The visibility of gangs and gang-related activities in the school setting causes a substantial disruption of and/or material interference with school and school activities of this district. Gang and gang-related activities are prohibited on school property or at school affiliated activities. No student may intimidate or harass another student for the purpose of gang recruitment or gang retaliation. "Gang" as used in this policy shall mean two or more individuals who associated with each other primarily for criminal, disruptive and/or other activities prohibited by law and/or by the District's rules and regulations.

No student on or about school property or at any school activity:

- 1. shall wear, possess, use, distribute, display, or sell any clothing, jewelry, emblem, badge, symbol, sign or other item which is evidence of membership or affiliation in any gang.
- 2. shall communicate, either verbally or non-verbally, gestures, handshakes, slogans, drawings, etc. membership or affiliation in a gang.
- 3. shall commit any act which furthers gang activity, including, not limited to:
  - a. soliciting others for membership in any gang;
  - b. requesting any person to pay protection or otherwise intimidating or threatening any person;
  - c. committing any other legal act or violation of school district policies;
  - d. inciting other students to act with violence towards any other person.

#### PROCEDURE:

A student violating paragraph 1 or 2 of this policy will be required to attend a parent conference with the Principal/Designee. Subsequent related violations of the policy will subject the student to suspension or expulsion. A student violating paragraph 3 of this policy shall be subject to suspension or expulsion.

### COVID-19:

If your child is exhibiting symptoms of illness, they should not attend school: Fever or chills, Cough, Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing, Fatigue, Muscle or body aches, Headache, New loss of taste or smell, Sore throat, Congestion or runny nose, Nausea, or vomiting.

#### **Board Policy 720.14 - Administering Medicine to Students**

#### **Students**

The primary responsibility for administering medication to a student rests with that student's parent(s) or guardian(s). Medication required by a student will generally not be administered at school by a District employee. This policy includes even common and widely used preparations such as aspirin. Medication

will be administered by a certified school nurse, a non-certificated registered professional nurse, or an administrative school employee during the school day only when necessary, for the critical health and well-being of the student. Neither teachers nor other non-administrative school employees, except certified school nurses and non-certificated registered professional nurses, will be required to administer medication to students. Parent(s)/guardian(s) may authorize their child to self-administer a medication according to the District's procedures. Self-administration of medication by students with asthma will be permitted in accordance with the School Code and the District's procedures.

#### HOWEVER, NOT WITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY OF THESE POLICIES, THIS DOES NOT PROHIBIT ANY SCHOOL EMPLOYEE FROM PROVIDING EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE TO STUDENTS INCLUDING ADMINISTERING MEDICATION.

This policy will be administered in accordance with all applicable federal and State laws, including those pertaining to special education students.

#### School District Supply of Undesignated Epinephrine Auto-Injectors

The Superintendent or designee shall implement Section 22-30(f) of the School Code and maintain a supply of undesignated epinephrine auto-injectors in the name of the District and provide or administer them as necessary according to State law. Undesignated epinephrine auto-injector means an epinephrine auto-injector prescribed in the name of the District or one of its schools. School nurse or trained personnel, as defined in State law, may administer an undesignated epinephrine auto-injector to a person when they, in good faith, believe a person is having an anaphylactic reaction.

This section of the policy is void whenever the Superintendent or designee is, for whatever reason, unable to: (1) obtain for the District a prescription for undesignated epinephrine auto-injectors from a physician or advanced practice nurse licensed to practice medicine in all its branches, or (2) fill the District's prescription for undesignated school epinephrine auto-injectors.

Upon any administration of an undesignated epinephrine auto-injector, the Superintendent or designee(s) must ensure all notifications required by State law and administrative procedures occur.

Upon implementation of this policy, the protections from liability and hold harmless provisions as explained in Section 22-30(c) of the School Code apply.

No one, including without limitation parents/guardians of students, should rely on the district for the availability of an epinephrine auto-injector. This policy does not guarantee the availability of an epinephrine auto-injector; students and their parents/guardians should consult their own physician regarding this medication.

LEGAL REF.: Illinois School Code, Sec. 10-20.14b, 10-22.21b and 22-30 (105 ILCS 5/10-20.14b, 5/10-22.21b and 5/22-30).

Amended September 6, 2016

#### Board Policy 620.07-

#### **Comprehensive Health Education Program**

The District will provide a comprehensive health education program, which will cover the following:

For all grades, the health program will include human ecology and health; human growth and development; the emotional, psychological, physiological, hygienic, and social responsibilities of family life, including sexual abstinence until marriage; and the prevention and control of disease.

In grades 6 through 8, the program will include the prevention, transmission and spread of HIV; the limitations of preventive measures; public and environmental health; consumer health; safety education and disaster survival; mental health and illness; personal health habits; alcohol/drug use and abuse; including the medical and legal ramifications of alcohol, drug, and tobacco use/abuse during pregnancy; sexual abstinence until marriage; tobacco; nutrition; and dental health.

The following topics also may be included in the health curricula: basis first aid (including cardiopulmonary resuscitation and the Heimlich maneuver); early prevention and detection of cancer; heart disease; diabetes; stroke; and the prevention of child abuse, neglect, and suicide.

#### (Opt out Clause):

No student will be required to take or participate in any class or course on HIV or family life education if his/her parent or guardian submits a written objection to such instruction. Further, the refusal to take or participate in the course/program will not be reason for the suspension or expulsion of the student or changing the student's grade. The student will be required to complete an alternative activity that is aligned (by goal(s), purpose, and standard) to the instructional activity in which the student is not participating.

In grades 5 through 8, alcohol and drug use and abuse programs will be included in classroom instruction. Included into these programs will be topics of the physical effects, legal effects and ramifications of alcohol and drug abuse.

The District also will provide the following health and safety-related, as appropriate:

- 1) In grades kindergarten through 8, the health program will include instruction that provides students with effective ways to recognize the danger of and avoid abduction and sexual abuse.
- 2) In grades 6 through 8, students may be provided parenting education in accordance with Section 27-23.1 of the Illinois School Code.
- 3) In all grades, students may be provided safety instruction in accordance with Section 27-17 of the School Code.
- 4) In grades 6 through 8, students may receive instruction on reducing self-destructive behavior. This instruction will include various ways to improve the life-coping skills, self-esteem, and parenting skills (of adolescents and teenagers) to deter their acceptance or practice of self-destructive behavior.
- 5) All students will receive age-appropriate instruction on motor-vehicle safety and litter control.
- 6) All students who are transported by bus to or from school or to any school activity will receive instruction on bus riding safety.

As part of the District's comprehensive health education program, the Board of Education encourages:

Increased use of mass-communication media to alert adults and children to the alarming increase in social problems and health hazards; and

Cooperation in the development of meaningful materials and resources for use in the schools to help students understand the nature of these social problems and health hazards. Also, it is hoped that these materials and resources will contribute to the development of attitudes and values that will help students be constructive agents in finding solutions to these social problems and to make responsible personal choices concerning the health hazards.

#### LEGAL REF.:

Illinois Critical Health Problems and Comprehensive Health Education Act (105 ILCS 110/1, et seq.); Illinois School Code, Sec. 27-13.2, 27-23.1, 27-17, 27-23.2, 27-23, 27-26 (105 ILCS 5/27-13.2, 5/27-23.1, 5/27-17, 5/27-23.2, 5/27-23, 5/27-26); 23 Ill.Admin.Code § 1.420(t).

CROSS REF.: 620

Adopted: April 4, 2005

### **Non-Discrimination Board Policy 115**

School District Organization

School District 151 shall establish and maintain an atmosphere in which all persons can develop attitudes and skills for effective, cooperative learning, including:

- 1) Respect for the individual regardless of economic status, intellectual ability, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, marital status, sex, or age.
- 2) Respect for those persons who are physically, mentally, emotionally, or perceptually handicapped.
- 3) Respect for cultural differences.
- 4) Respect for economic, political, and social rights of others.
- 5) Respect for the right of others to seek and maintain their own identities.

Adopted: October 4, 1999

# STUDENT TECHNOLOGY RESPONSIBLE USE POLICY <u>710.18</u>

- I. PURPOSE The South Holland School District 151 (SHSD 151) recognizes that access to technology in school gives students greater opportunities to learn, engage, communicate, and develop skills that will prepare them for work, life, and citizenship. We are committed to helping students develop 21<sup>st</sup> century technology and communication skills. To that end, we provide the privilege of access to technologies for student and staff use. Access to technology is a privilege, not a right, and as such, students must seriously consider the responsibilities associated with signing this user agreement.
  - Technology provided for educational purposes that Support the mission, vision, core beliefs and goals of South Holland School District 151
  - Enhance the development of 21st Century Skills included in Common Core Standards
  - Encourage innovation, communication, creativity, collaboration and problem-solving skills by providing access to current and relevant information
  - Prepare students for college or career

#### **II. DEFINITION OF TECHNOLOGY**

- Internet, shared network resources and external file storage devices
- Desktop, mobile computers, tablets and handheld devices
- Videoconferencing, televisions, projection systems and telephones
- Online collaboration, message boards, and email
- Copiers, printers and peripheral equipment
- Additional technologies as developed

#### III. CIPA

SHSD 151 is in compliance with the Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA) and has installed technology protection measures for all computers in the school corporation. A technology protection measure is in place that blocks or filters Internet access. This filter protects against access by adults and minors to visual depictions that are obscene, child pornography, or — with respect to use of computers with Internet access by minors — harmful to minors. The content filter does monitor the online activities of minors and may be reviewed when deemed necessary.

The Responsible Use Policy (RUP) applies to:

- School-owned technology on the SHSD 151 Internet/network, on non-school networks and offline
- Privately owned technology that is connected to the SHSD 151 internet/network and on privately owned networks while on school property

#### IV. RESPONSIBLE USE

Users must abide by all school rules as outlined in the Student Handbook and this Responsible Use Policy. This policy outlines the guidelines and behaviors that all users are expected to follow when using technology. It is the responsibility of both SHSD 151 and parents to help prepare students to

be members of a digital society or digital citizens. A digital citizenship is defined as the norms of behavior with regard to technology use.

A digital citizen is one who:

- 1. Understands human, cultural, and societal issues related to technology and practice legal and ethical behavior.
- 2. Advocates and practice safe, legal, and responsible use of information and technology.
- 3. Exhibits a positive attitude toward using technology that supports collaboration, learning, and productivity.
- 4. Demonstrates personal responsibility for lifelong learning.
- 5. Exhibits leadership for digital citizenship.

#### V. PROHIBITED USE

Unacceptable uses of school electronic resources include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Accessing or Communicating Inappropriate Materials–Users may not access, submit, post, publish, forward, download, scan or display defamatory, abusive, obscene, vulgar, sexually explicit, sexually suggestive, threatening, discriminatory, harassing, bullying and/or illegal materials or messages.
- 2. Illegal Activities–Users may not use the school district's computers, electronic devices, networks, or Internet services for any illegal activity or in violation of any Board policy/procedure or school rules. SHSD 151 and its employees and agents assume no responsibility for illegal activities of students while using school computers or school-issued electronic resources.
- **3.** Violating Copyrights or Software Licenses–Downloading, copying, duplicating and distributing software, music, sound files, movies, images or other copyrighted materials without the specific written permission of the copyright owner is prohibited, except when the use falls within the Fair Use Doctrine of the United States Copyright Law (Title 17, USC) and content is cited appropriately.
- **4. Plagiarism**–Users may not represent as their own work any materials obtained on the Internet (such as term papers, articles, music, etc). When using other sources, credit must be given to the copyright holder. Users should not take credit for things they did not create themselves or misrepresent themselves as an author or creator of something found online. Research conducted via the Internet should be appropriately cited, giving credit to the original author.
- **5.** Cyberbullying Cyberbullying will not be tolerated. Harassing, denigrating, impersonating, and cyberstalking are all examples of cyberbullying. Do not send emails or post comments with the intent of scaring, hurting, or intimidating others. Engaging in these behaviors, or any online activities intended to harm (physically or emotionally) another person, will result in severe disciplinary action and loss of privileges. In some cases, cyberbullying can be a crime. Remember that your activities are monitored and retained.
- 6. Misuse of Passwords/Unauthorized Access –Users may not share passwords; use any user account/password that is not assigned to them; or attempt to circumvent network security systems.
- 7. Malicious Use/Vandalism–Users may not engage in any malicious use, disruption or harm to the school district's computers, electronic devices, network and Internet services, including but not limited to hacking activities and creation/uploading of computer viruses.
- **8.** Avoiding School Filters–Users may not attempt to use any software, utilities or other means to access Internet sites or content blocked by the school filters.

- **9.** Unauthorized Access to Blogs/Social Networking Sites, Etc. Users may not access blogs, social networking sites, etc. prohibited by school administration or the SHSD 151 Technology Department. Teachers and students using authorized social networking sites for educational projects or activities shall follow the age requirements and legal requirements that govern the use of social networking sites in addition to the guidelines established in this policy.
- **10. Degrade System Resources -** Users shall not use the network in such a way that would degrade the performance system resources or disrupt the use of the network by others. This includes but is not limited to excessive printing, file storage, online games, and video/audio streaming not directly related to educational projects, as determined by the supervising instructor or school administrator.
- **11. Unauthorized Equipment -** Users may not attach unauthorized equipment, including personal laptops, tablets, and handheld devices, to the district network without permission from the school administration or SHSD 151 Technology Department.

#### VI. PRIVACY

All computers, telephone systems, voice mail systems, electronic mail, and electronic communication systems are the district's property. The district retains the right to access and review all electronic and voice mail, computer files, databases, and any other electronic transmissions contained in or used in conjunction with district's computer, telephone, electronic mail, and voice mail. Students and staff should have no expectation that any information contained on such systems is confidential or private.

#### VII. PRIVACY

- 1. All users are given accounts upon entry into SHSD 151. Any user account given is intended for the sole use of that user only. Each user is responsible for the security of the system. Passwords should not be shared. If a user shared a password with another, that user will be held accountable.
- 2. Users may not reveal personal information, including a home address and phone number, about themselves or another individual on any unsecured electronic medium, such as web sites, blogs, podcasts, videos, wikis, or social networking sites. If users encounter dangerous or inappropriate information or messages, they shall notify the school administration immediately.
- 3. Staff may post student pictures on district/ school/classroom "public" websites as long as the student's name or other identifying information is not included. Students' grades, test results, or identifying pictures may be stored only on district-approved secure sites that require a username and password for authorized individuals to access.
- 4. Many devices have the capability to record audio and video. It is best practice and common courtesy to ask permission before recording an individual or group. The use of cameras in any type of electronic device is strictly prohibited in locker rooms and restrooms.
- 5. SHSD 151 staff must maintain the confidentiality of student data in accordance with the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).
- 6. Students may be issued a school email address to improve student communication and collaboration on school projects. Email shall be used only for educational purposes that directly relates to a school project or assignment.

#### VIII. DAMAGE/LIABILITY

Users may be responsible for compensating the school district for any losses, costs or damages incurred for violations of Board policies/procedures and school rules, including the cost of investigating such

violations. The school district assumes no responsibility for any unauthorized charges or costs incurred by users while using school district computers, devices, or the school network.

#### IX. TERMS OF USE

SHSD 151 reserves the right to deny, revoke or suspend specific user privileges and/or take other disciplinary action, including suspension or expulsion from school, for violations of this policy. Additionally, all handbook regulations apply to the use of the SHSD 151 network, Internet, and electronic resources.

#### X. Disclaimer

SHSD 151, its employees and agents, make no warranties of any kind, neither expressed nor implied, concerning the network, Internet access, and electronic resources it is providing. Furthermore, SHSD 151 is not responsible for:

- 1. The accuracy, nature, quality, or privacy of information stored on local servers or devices, or information gathered through Internet access.
- 2. Any damage suffered by a user (whether the cause is accidental or not) including but not limited to, loss of data, delays or interruptions in service, and the infection of viruses or other malware on personal computers or other devices.
- 3. Unauthorized financial obligations resulting from the use of SHSD 151 electronic resources.

Adopted: April, 10 2017 Attachments: Appendix A

# 2024-2025 PARENT/STUDENT DISCIPLINE

Handbook

708-339-1516
 www.shsd151.org
 525 E 162nd Street

 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0

 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0

 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0

 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0
 0

pg. 62

# **Intentional Blank Page**

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Introduction	65
Students' Responsibilities	69
Parents' Responsibilities	69
Students' Rights	69
Parents' Rights	69
Teachers' Responsibilities	70
Teachers' Rights	70
Level I Acts of Misconduct	71
Disciplinary Response for Level I Acts of Misconduct	71
Level II Acts of Misconduct	72
Disciplinary Response for Level II Acts of Misconduct	73
Level III Acts of Misconduct	74
Disciplinary Response for Level III Acts of Misconduct	75
Level IV Acts of Misconduct	75
Disciplinary Response for Level IV Acts of Misconduct	76
Bus Misconduct	77
Due Process Procedures	78
Board Policies-Related to Students	54

#### **Discipline Handbook Committee**

Dear Parents:

The state of Illinois passed S.B. #730, which requires school districts to implement educational improvements. One mandate was that the local school districts establish a discipline policy committee whose task was to formulate a district-wide discipline policy and handbook. The law further requires the following (1) students and parents be given copies of the handbook within 15 days of enrollment in a district school, (2) a teacher may remove a student from the classroom for disruptive behavior, (3) the district policy must include due process for the student, refer to page 19 "Due Process Procedures", (4) the rights and responsibilities of the students, teachers, parents, Board of Education and administration be expressed in the discipline handbook, (5) the administration should provide materials, organize the appropriate class size and have proper building conditions conducive to good discipline and, (6) adopt and use a standard referral from throughout the district to report misconduct and disciplinary action.

Our handbook has divided discipline offenses into four levels of seriousness. Level I list minor offenses that are handled by an individual staff member. Level II involves misbehaviors whose frequency or seriousness tend to disrupt the learning climate of the school/bus environment. Level III involves acts that are directed against persons or property that do not seriously endanger the health and safety of others. Level IV acts involve actions which are so serious that they always require at least the removal of the students from the school/bus. Also included in this handbook are rules related to conduct while riding the bus, and District Discipline Policy (715.01), and Responsible Use Policy for Internet Use (710.18).

Please carefully read the handbook and feel free to make comments to the district administration concerning the information contained in the discipline handbook.

It is imperative that you read and discuss with your child this discipline handbook. It includes school policies and procedures, bus regulations and consequences.

Best Wishes,

District Discipline Handbook Committee

#### Dear Students:

One of the most important responsibilities you have as a student in your school is good behavior. Good behavior allows you and your fellow students to learn what they should be learning. Good behavior makes learning better for all.

To make sure that you and other students in School District 151 know how to behave in school and on the bus, a discipline code/handbook was written.

A discipline code/handbook tells you the rules of the school, the kind of behavior that is expected of students and the kind of behaviors that will not be permitted at school or on the bus.

If you do not behave as you should, the discipline code tells you the actions to be taken by staff members.

You should read this booklet carefully because it describes the discipline code for your school. If you have any questions about the discipline code/handbook or cannot understand some of the words in this booklet, ask your teacher for help. You must take this booklet home for your parents or guardian to read. They should know about the discipline code/handbook, too. Please do your part to follow the rules of the school. If you do, you will learn more and you will enjoy school more.

Best wishes for a productive, safe school year,

District Discipline Handbook Committee

#### Students have the responsibility to:

- Come to school every day and be on time.
- Show respect to all staff, adults, and other students.
- Go to all classes and complete their work.
- Ask their teachers for help.
- Help care for books, supplies, and all school property.
- Obey all school rules Obey all teachers and staff.
- Be polite to all staff and students.
- Not use profanity, profanity like, unkind, mean, or bad words.
- Avoid fights or hurting other students, physically or verbally.
- Make sure you are neat, clean, and <u>dressed appropriately according to your school's dress</u> code policy.
- Act in a way that will help you and other students to learn.
- Be fair and kind to other students.
- Do homework assignments and come prepared for classwork each day.
- Follow all bus conduct and safety rules as you do in school.
- Bring all necessary school supplies to school every day to complete all the work.
- Ensure that you follow all bus rules, cooperate with the bus driver, and school personnel.

#### Parents have the responsibility to:

- See their child attends school regularly and are not tardy.
- Understand the responsibilities of the teacher, who takes the place of the parents during the school day.
- Support the rules of the school, the bus, the district and the community.
- Safeguard your child's health by maintaining regular doctor and dental visits meeting all
   State Health requirements.
- Attending school conferences Fall and Winter.
- Plan a time and place, with supervision, for you to do homework.
- Talk with their child about school and their report card.
- Communicate with the teacher about their child's report card throughout the school year using all available technology.
- Cooperate with the school/district regarding the discipline code.
- Attending parent/teacher meetings and other school activities, when possible.
- Make sure that the school always has a phone number that can be contacted. They should notify the school immediately of changes in home or emergency telephone information.
- See that you are neat, clean, and dressed appropriately for the weather.
- Ensure that you follow all school and bus rules, cooperate with the bus driver, and school personnel.

#### Students have the right to:

- Learn and receive help with their studies.
- Be protected from physical/verbal abuse and sexual, racial, or religious harassment.
- Give their point of view in a calm manner as long as it does not harm the rights of others, offend them or take away your rights.
- Learn to make decisions and accept consequences.
- Be disciplined in private, if possible.
- Know the reasons for any discipline, have the right to explain their side of the story to the building principal/or designee, and have adults available to help you when your views and those of the school do not agree.
- Be informed of the School and District Disciplinary Code.
- Be in a safe environment, which is conducive to learning.
- Seek adult assistance for problem solving or concerns.

#### Parents have the right to:

- Expect a classroom atmosphere that allows good education to take place.
- See their child's school records and obtain appropriate explanation.
- Be informed of their child's attendance, learning, or behavior problems.
- Be told why their child is being disciplined.
- Receive regular reports on their child's progress in learning.
- Visit classrooms on a regular basis after coming to the main office and receiving a visitor's pass.
- Expect a safe and clean bus.
- Expect an orderly transition to and from school.
- Make an appointment at the main office to see the principal and/or staff members.
- Expect a safe and secure school environment.

#### Teachers have the responsibility to:

- Provide the best possible education through a wholesome classroom climate.
- Respect all students, parents, and other staff.
- Be available to communicate with staff, parents, and students about classwork and discipline during non-instructional times, providing that arrangements are made through the office at a pre-arranged time.
- Enforce the rules of the school and bus: courteously, consistently and fairly.
- Deal with disciplinary problems: quickly, firmly, and fairly.
- Help with discipline outside of the classroom: in the halls, the restrooms, on the school grounds, and on the bus.
- Teach respect for community property and good citizenship.
- Recognize good behavior and potential in all students.
- Give feedback for progress in all areas: attitude, behavior, grades, test scores, punctuality, and appearance.
- Protect student confidentiality to the greatest extent possible given the circumstances.
- Use respectful language and have appropriate conversations with others in front of students.

#### **Teachers have a right to:**

- Expect appropriate behavior in the learning community.
- Expect respect, cooperation and support from students, parents and other staff members.
- Be protected from verbal abuse, physical assault, harm, or theft of personal property.
- Exclude students from a classroom when they are displaying inappropriate behavior.
- Call for a parent/teacher conference when a student violates the discipline code.
- Take necessary disciplinary measures and use reasonable force as necessary to maintain the orderly process of the classroom and protect you from harm. (Reasonable force does not include or imply corporal punishment.)
- Set reasonable classroom and bus rules and expect the students to follow them.

#### Level I Acts of Misconduct

Level I Acts of Misconduct are minor misbehaviors which impede the **orderly operation of the classroom, school, and bus.** Such misbehaviors can usually be handled by individual staff, or bus personnel, but sometimes require the intervention of other school support personnel. Level I misbehaviors include the following, but are not limited to:

- Minor school or bus disturbances
- Unnecessary bus noise
- Improper boarding/departing bus procedures.
- Failure/Refusal to follow directions or commands.
- Rude, discourteous, or annoying conduct on school grounds and the bus
- Littering
- o Tardiness
- Discourtesy to another student
- Failure/Refusal to do homework.
- Failure/Refusal to obey.
- o Obscenity, Foul Language, Gestures, and Other Inappropriate Behavior
- Improper use of school equipment and/or property
- Failure/Refusal to have necessary supplies for class.
- Misrepresentation Lying

#### **Disciplinary Response for Level I Acts of Misconduct**

There is immediate intervention by the staff member who is supervising the student or who observes the misbehavior.

# THE OPTIONS ARE NOT RANK ORDERED BUT ARE LEFT TO THE DISCRETION OF THE INDIVIDUAL STAFF MEMBER.

Repeated misbehaviors may require a parent/teacher conference or a parent conference with a counselor and/or administrator. A proper and accurate record of the offense and disciplinary action is maintained by the staff member for the school year.

#### **Disciplinary Options**

#### Cluster (1)

- Conference with student
- Verbal reprimand
- Withdrawal of privileges
- Minor disciplinary written assignment
- Community Service

Cluster (2)

- Detention
- Conference w/ parents (by phone or in person)
- Behavioral contract
- Time out in classroom

## Level II Acts of Misconduct

Level II Acts of Misconduct involve misbehaviors whose frequency or seriousness tend to disrupt the learning climate of the school. Level II Acts of Misconduct MUST INVOLVE THE TEACHER AND PRINCIPAL OR THEIR DESIGNEE. Those infractions, which result from the continuation of Level I misbehaviors require the intervention of personnel on the <u>administrative</u> <u>level</u> because the execution of Level I disciplinary options have failed to correct the situation. Included in this level are misbehaviors which do not represent a direct threat to the health and safety of others, but whose educational consequences are serious enough to require corrective action on the part of the administrative personnel. These include such misbehaviors as, but are not limited to:

Continuation of unmodified Level I Acts of misconduct.

- Unexcused absenteeism or tardiness (subject to the truancy statutes and Board policy concerning chronic and habitual truancy)
- Forgery or the use of forged notes or excuses
- **Disrespect**/insubordination to school or bus personnel
- **Refusal** to identify self to school or bus personnel.
- Loitering and/or cutting class
- Gambling
- Verbal abuse of a student, staff member, bus driver, or any adult in the building, or representing the school
- **Stealing** (minor)
- **Failure/Refusal** to abide by corrective measures for misconduct.
- **Dishonesty** cheating, plagiarizing, lying.
- Vandalism
- Failure/Refusal to follow school dress code (see Page 25)
- **Failure/Refusal** to board or depart the bus at the assigned stop.
- **Failure/Refusal** to remain properly seated on the bus.
- Eating or littering on the bus or bus stops
- Failure/Refusal to follow "Bus Misconduct Rules."
- Using or possessing electronic devices such as: cell phones, cameras, camera phones, iPods, MP3 players and electronic games unless authorized and approved by the building principal.
- **Being in an Unauthorized Area/Cutting Class**
- Playfighting

## **Disciplinary Response to Level II Acts of Misconduct**

**Disciplinary Procedures:** 

The student is referred to the administrator or his/her designee (on the district discipline referral form) and the administrator confers to affect the most appropriate disciplinary response.

A copy of the discipline referral/report form which indicates action(s) taken, will be given to the staff member making the office referral.

A proper and accurate record of the offense and disciplinary action(s) is maintained by the administrator.

# THE OPTIONS WITHIN EACH CLUSTER ARE NOT RANK ORDERED BUT ARE LEFT TO THE DISCRETION OF THE INDIVIDUAL STAFF MEMBER.

## **Disciplinary Options**

## Cluster (1)

- Conference with student
- Detention
- Withdrawal of school or bus privileges
- Conference with parents by phone or in person
- Time-out within classroom
- Community Service
- Confiscation of Electronic Device and Parent Pick-up

## Cluster (2)

- Temporary removal from the classroom or the bus
- In-school suspension and a parent conference
- Referral to school district support service (Social Worker and Psychologist) Bus
- P suspension (1 to 5 days)

## Level III Acts of Misconduct

Level III Acts of Misconduct are directed against persons or property whose consequences seriously endanger the health, safety, and learning environment. Level III Acts can usually be handled by the disciplinary mechanism in the school. The corrective measures which the school or district uses will be determined by the extent of resources available for mediating the situation and in the best interest of all students.

These acts include the following, but are not limited to:

Continuation of unmodified Level II Acts of Misconduct

- **Fighting** (at school, on the bus, at the bus stops, or to or from school)
- Attempted extortion
- Trespassing
- **Stealing** (major or habitual)
- Leaving school without permission
- Gross misrepresentation of facts or an incident
- **Causing** or attempting to cause damage to, or stealing or attempting to steal, school property or another person's personal property at school.
- Verbal abuse of teacher/adult extreme or habitual.
- **Tampering** with school or bus equipment
- Throwing objects in or out of the bus, or in the classroom
- **Dangerous** behavior in school or on the bus that presents a danger to self or others.
- Failure/Refusal to board or depart the bus at the assigned stop.
- Unacceptable use of computers and/or internet policy (See Responsible Use Access Policy #710.18.
- Aggressive Behavior which is repeated towards another student.
- Being a member of, joining, promising or pledging to join, or soliciting any other person to become a member of any public-school fraternity, sorority, or secret society.
- Engaging in any activity that constitutes an interference with or disruption of school purposes or an educational function.
- Gang and gang activities no student shall wear, possess, use, distribute, display, or sell any clothing, jewelry, emblem, badge, symbol, sign, or other item which is evidence of membership. No student shall communicate, whether verbally or non-verbally, gestures, handshakes, slogans, drawings, etc. membership or affiliation in a gang.

- **Taking unauthorized photographs or recordings.**
- Bullying
- Aggressive Behavior

These levels of misconduct can result in possible police involvement.

## Level IV Acts of Misconduct

Level IV Acts of Misconduct involve actions which are so serious to school and bus safety that they always require administrative actions which result in at least temporary removal of the student from the school. Some Level IV Acts of Misconduct involve the intervention of law enforcement authorities and action by the Board of Education.

These include, but are not limited to:

- Continuation of the unmodified Level III Acts of misconduct
- Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling tobacco materials
- Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling alcoholic beverages. Students who are under the influence of alcohol are not permitted to attend school or school functions and are treated as though they have alcohol in their possession.
- Using, possessing, distributing, or selling illegal drugs or controlled substances, look-alike drugs, and drug paraphernalia. Students who are under the influence of drugs are not permitted to attend school or school functions and are treated as though they have drugs in their possession.
- Using, possessing, distributing, displaying, purchasing, or selling explosives, firearms, knives, or any other object that can be reasonably considered a weapon, or used as a weapon, or that looks like a weapon.
- **Bomb** threats
- Engaging in any activity that constitutes an interference with or disruption of school purposes or an educational function extreme or habitual.
- Setting fires
- Setting false fire alarms/fire extinguishers
- **Destruction** or taking personal property of others with or without force or violence.
- Unacceptable use of computer and/or internet policy (See Responsible Use Access Policy #710.18.
- **Possession** and/or sale of stolen property
- Molesting
- Harassment of any type, including sexual, racial, ethnic, or religious
- Gangs/cult recruitment soliciting others for membership in any gang or cult. Requesting any person to pay protection or otherwise intimidating or threatening any person. Committing any other illegal act or violation upon any other person.
- Aggressive behavior extreme or habitual
- Other acts of misconduct, which are seriously disruptive and/or create a safety hazard to students, staff, school, persons, and/or school property.
- **Knowingly** making a video record or transmitting live video of another person without that person's consent in a restroom, locker, or changing room.

## Infractions

These levels of misconduct can result in possible police involvement.

## An accumulation of four referrals during one school year of Levels II, III and/or IV Acts of misconduct may be sufficient cause for a referral to the Board of Education.

## **Disciplinary Response to Level IV Acts of Misconduct**

Disciplinary Procedures:

The administrator verifies the offense, confers with the personnel involved and meets with the student. The student is immediately removed from the school/bus environment and the student's parents are notified.

School officials contact law enforcement officials, if appropriate. A complete and accurate report is submitted to the Superintendent.

Some Level IV violations may result in a referral to the Board of Education. Other violations may result in an automatic referral to the Board of Education.

# THE OPTIONS WITHIN EACH CLUSTER ARE NOT RANK ORDERED BUT ARE LEFT TO THE DISCRETION OF THE INDIVIDUAL STAFF MEMBER.

## **Disciplinary Options**

## Cluster (1)

- Out-of-school or bus suspension up to 10 days
- Financial restitution (in cases where damage or loss is incurred)
- Counseling at parents' expense
- Þ Counseling and/or drug testing at parents' expense

Cluster (2)

Alternative program

- a program for disruptive youths
- homebound instruction
- Þ other appropriate District alternatives (Board action which results inappropriate placement).

Action as recommended/approved by the Board of Education. Expulsion from school or the bus.

## **Bus Misconduct**

Bus routines and rules are designed to maintain safety and order for all students being transported to and from school. Bus misbehaviors are those behaviors which impede the safety and/or orderly operation. Samples of common misbehaviors include the following:

- Improper boarding/departing procedures.
- Bringing articles aboard bus of injurious or objectionable nature
- Failure to remain seated.
- Fighting/pushing/tripping on bus and surrounding bus stop area
- Hanging out of the window person/possessions
- Throwing objects in or out of the bus
- Littering/Eating
- Unnecessary noise
- Tampering with/defacing bus equipment
- Destruction of property on bus and in and around bus stop area
- Rude, discourteous, and annoying conduct

All bus misbehavior is considered serious infractions because they can impact upon the safety of all students on the bus.

Disciplinary interventions are incorporated and categorized within this handbook. If the bus misbehavior is such that the driver feels he/she must return to the school with the bus, the Principal or his/her designee may remove the offending student(s) from the bus at that time and parents will be notified to pick up the student(s) at the school. Serious infraction affecting the driver and children may be dealt with as an immediate suspension. Riding the bus is a privilege. This privilege will be revoked consequently for improper bus conduct.

## **Due Process Procedures**

The student or the parent should discuss the matter with the person or persons directly responsible for the concern.

If no satisfaction is attained, the matter should be directed to the Building or School Principal and then to the District Superintendent. If the concern involves the Principal, the District Superintendent should be contacted after talking with the principal.

If the matter is serious and a satisfactory solution is not realized, the student or parents may then wish to request a review by the Board of Education.

The appeal agent after the local Board of Education is the Suburban Cook County Regional Office of Education and the Illinois State Board of Education. Only matters involving controversies (or concerns) arising under The School Code of Illinois may be appealed to the Suburban Cook County Regional Office of Education and the Illinois State Board of Education.

## **Board Policies**

Below are all the School Board Policies related to student expectations:

٠	Board Policy- 705.14	Student Attendance and Truancy
٠	Board Policy- 710.18	Student Responsible Use
٠	Board Policy- 710.08	Student Conduct on School Buses
٠	Board Policy-710.10	Care of School Property – Vandalism
٠	Board Policy- 710.12	Smoking
٠	Board Policy- 710.14	<b>Alcohol and Drug-Free Schools</b>
٠	Board Policy- 710.15	Use of Drugs and/or Alcohol
٠	Board Policy- 710.16	Weapons
٠	Board Policy- 710.17	Student Complaints and Grievances
•	Board Policy– 710.20 Signaling Devices	Cellular Telephones and Electronic
٠	Board Policy- 710.21	Hazing
•	Board Policy- 710.27	Student Involvement in Gang Activities
٠	Board Policy- 715.01	Student Discipline
•	Board Policy-715.13	Bullying

ALL School Board Policies can be found on the school district website@ www.shsd151.org/boe/policies

## **Intentional Blank Page**



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Student Attendance and Truancy
Code	705.14
Status	Active
Legal	Illinois School Code, Sec. 26-1, 26-2, 26-2a, 26-2b, 26-3, 26-3b, 26-9, 26-12, 26-13, 26-14 and 26-15 (105 ILCS 5/26-1, 5/26-2, 5/26-2a, 5/26-2b, 5/26-3, 5/26-3b, 5/26-9, 5/26-12, 5/26-13, 5/26-14 and 5/26-15).
Cross References	672
Adopted	October 3, 2005
Last Revised	May 8, 2023

#### General

Whoever has custody or control of any child between the ages of seven and seventeen must ensure that the child attends some public school in the district where the child resides the entire time school is in session during the regular school term, except as otherwise provided by law.

#### **Philosophy**

The goal of the attendance policies and procedures of the District will be to support and improve the regular attendance and performance of our students. The Board of Education recognizes that regular attendance is vital to a student's success in school. In order to take full advantage of the educational program offered by the teachers and supported by the staff of District 151, students must attend school on a daily basis. Regular attendance and parental support coupled with student effort are critical factors in learning and being successful in school. Ensuring that a student maintains regular attendance requires a cooperative effort by the student, parent(s) or guardian(s), and school personnel. A student who is frequently absent misses valuable instruction and discussion that is important for academic success, even though the written work is made up.

The District will not be responsible for the educational progress of students who fail to maintain regular attendance, or who are removed from school for extended periods of time contrary to law or good educational practices, as deemed appropriate by the District.

Parents and/or guardians having legal custody of school-age children are responsible for controlling those children and ensuring their attendance in school.

#### Expectations

This District requires that parent(s)/guardian(s) ensure the regular attendance of their children, consistent with Section 26-1 of the Illinois School Code, and inform the school of any absences and the causes of such absences. A written excuse signed by the parent/guardian may be required unless the child is excused from attendance under the provisions of Board Policy 672 (School Ceremonies and Observances).

#### Absenteeism

Each building principal is responsible for maintaining an effective system for recording student absences and for encouraging students to be prompt and to attend classes on a regular basis. Attendance is considered an important part of each class grade. Therefore, excessive absences will negatively affect the grade or credit for that class.

Absences are categorized as excused or unexcused. Valid causes of absenteeism (excused), as listed in Section 26-2a of the Illinois School Code, are:

- Illness (including mental or behavioral health of the student)
- Observance of a religious holiday (See Board Policy 672)
- · Death in the immediate family
- Family emergency (written explanation by the parent/guardian is required)
- Attendance at a civic event
- Other circumstances that cause reasonable concern to the parent/guardian for the student's mental, emotional, or physical health or safety
- Other reason as approved by the Superintendent or designee.
- · Other situations beyond the control of the student as determined by the Board of Education.

All other absences will be considered unexcused. Students absent for a valid cause may make up missed homework and classwork assignments in a reasonable timeframe.

#### Absence Notification

Each school will inform parents and students about District attendance policies and guidelines. Thereafter, the student's parents or guardians are responsible for promptly notifying the school attendance center of an expected absence.

If a child is absent from school and there is no record that such absence is for a valid cause, or that the absence has been authorized by a parent, legal guardian or other person having legal custody of the child, the building principal or his/her designee will, within 2 hours after the first class in which the child is enrolled, make a reasonable effort to notify the parent, legal guardian or other person having legal custody of the child of the child's absence from school by telephoning the numbers given in accordance with Section 26-3b of the Illinois School Code.

Parents are requested to notify the school when a child has been diagnosed as having a communicable disease in order that notices may be sent home to alert the parents of other children who may have been exposed.

#### Medical Documentation

Under certain circumstances, the District may require parents or guardians to present medical documentation of physical or emotional conditions causing a student's absence.

#### Tardiness

Students are expected to arrive to class on time. A student is considered tardy when he/she is not in class at the required time. Tardiness is not appropriate and disrupts the education of other students. Each building will develop a monitoring and reporting system.

Requiring a child to arrive on time promotes responsible behavior. Tardy arrival results in disruption to both the classroom and each individual student's learning process. Tardies are categorized as excused or unexcused. Valid causes of tardiness (excused) include:

- · Medical appointments
- Attendance at a funeral

#### Tardiness Notification

Parent(s)/guardian(s) are requested to notify the school office if a student will be arriving late, by writing a note, calling the office or accompanying the child to the school office for sign in. All students who are tardy will report to the building principal's office immediately upon arriving, provide the reason for the tardiness, receive authorization to return to class, and then immediately return to class and present the authorization to the classroom teacher.

#### Excessive Absenteeism

The District considers absenteeism excessive when it significantly interferes with a student's learning, as reflected in academic performance or social development. Excessive absenteeism includes excessive tardiness.

In order to reduce or prevent excessive absenteeism, the District will implement and maintain a procedure to:

- · track and provide early identification of potentially harmful attendance practices, and
- provide a progressive, multi-level plan toward remediation of the problem.

This procedure will include, but not be limited to, interviews with the student, his/her parent(s)/guardian(s), any school official(s) or other people who may have information.

#### Truancy

The District recognizes a responsibility to establish and maintain an attendance program to reduce and discourage truancy in all District schools.

The District considers a student who is subject to compulsory school attendance to be truant if he/she is absent for the school day or a portion of the school day without proper permission.

#### Chronic Truancy

The District considers a student who is subject to compulsory school attendance to be a chronic or habitual truant if he/she is absent for 10% or more of the previous 180 regular attendance days without proper permission.

#### Resources and Supportive Services

The following resources and supportive services, as determined appropriate, are available to truants and chronic or habitual truants with attendance problems and their parent(s)/guardian(s):

- conferences with school personnel
- · counseling services of school counselors, social workers, and psychologists
- · testing by school psychologists and special education personnel
- schedule or program changes
- placement in alternative educational programs
- · special education assessment and placement
- · referral to Project VISA or community agencies for appropriate services

#### Truant Minor

The District, in accordance with Section 26-2a of the Illinois School Code, considers a truant minor to be a chronic truant to whom the above resources and supportive services have been provided and have failed to result in the remediation of the chronic truancy, or has been offered and refused by the parent(s)/guardian(s) and/or student.

#### Referral of Chronic Truants

The respective building principal will initiate the first action to handle the problem of truancy by notifying parents. He/she also will initiate proper counseling and actions to secure resources to find a solution to the problem.

If the truancy continues, the principal will notify the Superintendent or his/her designee of the problem and outside-of-district resources -- such as the County Juvenile Officer -- also will be notified. District personnel will assist truant officers to fulfill their duties.

#### Punitive Action

Pursuant to Section 26-2a of the Illinois School Code, schools in the District will take no punitive action, including out-of-school suspensions, alternatives to suspension, expulsions or court action, against chronic truants for such truancy unless the above resources and supportive services have been provided to the student and parent(s)/guardian(s). No punitive actions will be taken by the District against the grades of a

truant student unless appropriate due process procedures are taken.

#### Student Employment

Any child necessarily and lawfully employed according to the provisions of the law regulating child labor may be excused from attendance at school by the Superintendent or designee.

#### Absenteeism and Truancy Program

The Superintendent or designee shall manage an absenteeism and truancy program in accordance with the School Code and School Board policy. The program shall include but not be limited to:

- 1. A protocol for excusing a student from attendance who is necessarily and lawfully employed. The Superintendent or designee is authorized to determine when the student's absence is justified.
- 2. A protocol for excusing a student in grades 6 through 8 from attendance to sound *Taps* at a military honors funeral held in Illinois for a deceased veteran.
- 3. A protocol for excusing a student from attendance on a particular day(s) or at a particular time of day when his/her parent/guardian is an active duty member of the uniformed services and has been called to duty for, is on leave from, or has immediately returned from deployment to a combat zone or combat-support postings.
- 4. <u>A process to telephone, within two hours after the first class, the parents/guardians of students in grade 8 or below who are absent without prior parent/guardian notification.</u>
- A process to identify and track students who are truants, chronic or habitual truants, or truant minors as defined in 105 ILCS 5/26-2a.
- 6. A description of diagnostic procedures for identifying the cause(s) of a student's unexcused absenteeism, including interviews with the student, his or her parent(s)/guardian(s), and staff members or other people who may have information about the reasons for the student's attendance problem.
- 7. The identification of supportive services that may be offered to truant, chronically truant, or chronically absent students, including parent-teacher conferences, student and/or family counseling, or information about community agency services.
- 8. A process for the collection and review of chronic absence data and to:
  - a. Determine what systems of support and resources are needed to engage chronically absent students and their families, and
  - b. Encourage the habit of daily attendance and promote success.
- 9. Reasonable efforts to provide ongoing professional development to teachers, administrators, Board members, school resource officers, and staff on the appropriate and available supportive services for the promotion of student attendance and engagement.
- 10. A process to request the assistance and resources of outside agencies, such as, the juvenile officer of the local police department or the truant office of the Regional Office of Education, if truancy continues after supportive services have been offered.
- 11. A protocol for cooperating with non-District agencies including County or municipal authorities, the Regional Superintendent, truant officers, the Community Truancy Review Board, and a comprehensive community-based youth service agency. Any disclosure of school student records must be consistent with Board policy 735, *Student Records*, as well as State and federal law concerning school student records.
- 12. An acknowledgement that no punitive action, including out-of-school suspensions, expulsions, or court action, shall be taken against a truant minor for his or her truancy unless available supportive services and other school resources have been provided to the student.
- 13. The criteria to determine whether a student's non-attendance is due to extraordinary circumstances shall include economic or medical necessity or family hardship and such other criteria that the Superintendent believes qualifies.

#### Monitoring

Pursuant to State law, the Board updates this policy at least once every two years. The Superintendent or designee shall assist the Board with its update.



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Student Technology Responsible Use Policy
Code	710.18
Status	Active
Adopted	April 10, 2017

**I. PURPOSE** The South Holland School District 151 (SHSD 151) recognizes that access to technology in school gives students greater opportunities to learn, engage, communicate, and develop skills that will prepare them for work, life, and citizenship. We are committed to helping students develop 21<sup>st</sup> century technology and communication skills. To that end, we provide the privilege of access to technologies for student and staff use. Access to technology is a privilege, not a right, and as such, students must seriously consider the responsibilities associated with signing this user agreement.

- Technology provided for educational purposes that Support the mission, vision, core beliefs and goals of South Holland School District 151
- Enhance the development of 21st Century Skills included in Common Core Standards
- Encourage innovation, communication, creativity, collaboration and problem-solving skills by providing access to current and relevant information
- Prepare students for college or career

#### **II. DEFINITION OF TECHNOLOGY**

- · Internet, shared network resources and external file storage devices
- · Desktop, mobile computers, tablets and handheld devices
- · Videoconferencing, televisions, projection systems and telephones
- · Online collaboration, message boards, and email
- · Copiers, printers and peripheral equipment
- · Additional technologies as developed

#### III. CIPA

SHSD 151 is in compliance with the Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA) and has installed technology protection measures for all computers in the school corporation. A technology protection measure is in place that blocks or filters Internet access. This filter protects against access by adults and minors to visual depictions that are obscene, child pornography, or — with respect to use of computers with Internet access by minors — harmful to minors. The content filter does monitor the online activities of minors and may be reviewed when deemed necessary.

The Responsible Use Policy (RUP) applies to:

- · School-owned technology on the SHSD 151 Internet/network, on non-school networks and offline
- Privately owned technology that is connected to the SHSD 151 internet/network and on privately owned networks while on school
  property

#### **IV. RESPONSIBLE USE**

Users must abide by all school rules as outlined in the Student Handbook and this Responsible Use Policy. This policy outlines the guidelines and behaviors that all users are expected to follow when using technology. It is the responsibility of both SHSD 151 and parents to help prepare students to be members of a digital society or digital citizens. A digital citizenship is defined as the norms of behavior with regard to technology use.

A digital citizen is one who:

- 1. Understands human, cultural, and societal issues related to technology and practice legal and ethical behavior.
- 2. Advocates and practice safe, legal, and responsible use of information and technology.
- 3. Exhibits a positive attitude toward using technology that supports collaboration, learning, and productivity.

4. Demonstrates personal responsibility for lifelong learning.

5. Exhibits leadership for digital citizenship.

#### **V. PROHIBITED USE**

Unacceptable uses of school electronic resources include, but are not limited to:

**1. Accessing or Communicating Inappropriate Materials**–Users may not access, submit, post, publish, forward, download, scan or display defamatory, abusive, obscene, vulgar, sexually explicit, sexually suggestive, threatening, discriminatory, harassing, bullying and/or illegal materials or messages.

**2. Illegal Activities**–Users may not use the school district's computers, electronic devices, networks, or Internet services for any illegal activity or in violation of any Board policy/procedure or school rules. SHSD 151 and its employees and agents assume no responsibility for illegal activities of students while using school computers or school-issued electronic resources.

**3. Violating Copyrights or Software Licenses**–Downloading, copying, duplicating and distributing software, music, sound files, movies, images or other copyrighted materials without the specific written permission of the copyright owner is prohibited, except when the use falls within the Fair Use Doctrine of the United States Copyright Law (Title 17, USC) and content is cited appropriately.

**4. Plagiarism**–Users may not represent as their own work any materials obtained on the Internet (such as term papers, articles, music, etc). When using other sources, credit must be given to the copyright holder. Users should not take credit for things they didn't create themselves, or misrepresent themselves as an author or creator of something found online. Research conducted via the Internet should be appropriately cited, giving credit to the original author.

**5. Cyberbullying** – Cyberbullying will not be tolerated. Harassing, denigrating, impersonating, and cyberstalking are all examples of cyberbullying. Do not send emails or post comments with the intent of scaring, hurting, or intimidating others. Engaging in these behaviors, or any online activities intended to harm (physically or emotionally) another person, will result in severe disciplinary action and loss of privileges. In some cases, cyberbullying can be a crime. Remember that your activities are monitored and retained.

**6. Misuse of Passwords/Unauthorized Access** –Users may not share passwords; use any user account/password that is not assigned to them; or attempt to circumvent network security systems.

7. Malicious Use/Vandalism–Users may not engage in any malicious use, disruption or harm to the school district's computers, electronic devices, network and Internet services, including but not limited to hacking activities and creation/uploading of computer viruses.

**8.** Avoiding School Filters–Users may not attempt to use any software, utilities or other means to access Internet sites or content blocked by the school filters.

**9. Unauthorized Access to Blogs/Social Networking Sites, Etc.** – Users may not access blogs, social networking sites, etc. prohibited by school administration or the SHSD 151 Technology Department. Teachers and students using authorized social networking sites for educational projects or activities shall follow the age requirements and legal requirements that govern the use of social networking sites in addition to the guidelines established in this policy.

**10. Degrade System Resources -** Users shall not use the network in such a way that would degrade the performance system resources or disrupt the use of the network by others. This includes but is not limited to excessive printing, file storage, online games, and video/audio streaming not directly related to educational projects, as determined by the supervising instructor or school administrator.

**11. Unauthorized Equipment -** Users may not attach unauthorized equipment, including personal laptops, tablets, and handheld devices, to the district network without permission from the school administration or SHSD 151 Technology Department.

#### VI. PRIVACY

All computers, telephone systems, voice mail systems, electronic mail, and electronic communication systems are the district's property. The district retains the right to access and review all electronic and voice mail, computer files, databases, and any other electronic transmissions contained in or used in conjunction with district's computer, telephone, electronic mail, and voice mail. Students and staff should have no expectation that any information contained on such systems is confidential or private.

#### VII. PRIVACY

1. All users are given accounts upon entry into SHSD 151. Any user account given is intended for the sole use of that user only. Each user is responsible for the security of the system. Passwords should not be shared. If a user shared a password with another, that user will be held accountable.

2. Users may not reveal personal information, including a home address and phone number, about themselves or another individual on any unsecured electronic medium, such as web sites, blogs, podcasts, videos, wikis, or social networking sites. If users encounter dangerous or inappropriate information or messages, they shall notify the school administration immediately.

3. Staff may post student pictures on district/ school/classroom "public" websites as long as the student's name or other identifying information is not included. Students' grades, test results, or identifying pictures may be stored only on district-approved secure sites that require a username and password for authorized individuals to access.

4. Many devices have the capability to record audio and video. It is best practice and common courtesy to ask permission before recording an individual or groups. The use of cameras in any type of electronic device is strictly prohibited in locker rooms and restrooms.

5. SHSD 151 staff must maintain the confidentiality of student data in accordance with the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).

6. Students may be issued a school email address to improve student communication and collaboration on school projects. Email shall be used only for educational purposes that directly relates to a school project or assignment.

## VIII. DAMAGE/LIABILITY

Users may be responsible for compensating the school district for any losses, costs or damages incurred for violations of Board policies/procedures and school rules, including the cost of investigating such violations. The school district assumes no responsibility for any unauthorized charges or costs incurred by users while using school district computers, devices, or the school network.

#### **IX. TERMS OF USE**

SHSD 151 reserves the right to deny, revoke or suspend specific user privileges and/or take other disciplinary action, including suspensions or expulsion from school, for violations of this policy. Additionally, all handbook regulations apply to the use of the SHSD 151 network, Internet, and electronic resources.

#### X. Disclaimer

SHSD 151, its employees and agents, make no warranties of any kind, neither expressed nor implied, concerning the network, Internet access, and electronic resources it is providing. Furthermore, SHSD 151 is not responsible for:

1. The accuracy, nature, quality, or privacy of information stored on local servers or devices or information gathered through Internet access.

2. Any damages suffered by a user (whether the cause is accidental or not) including but not limited to, loss of data, delays or interruptions in service, and the infection of viruses or other malware on personal computers or other devices.

3. Unauthorized financial obligations resulting from the use of SHSD 151 electronic resources.

Student Technology Responsible Use Policy- Appendix A.pdf (132 KB)



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Student Conduct and Electronic Recordings on School Buses
Code	710.08
Status	Active
Legal	Illinois School Code, Sec. 10-22.6 (105 ILCS 5/10-22.6). Illinois Criminal Code, Article 14, Sec. 14- 3(m) (720 ILCS 5/14-3(m)).
Last Revised	September 6, 2016

#### Bus Conduct

Proper student conduct on school buses is essential.

A student riding a bus provided by the District must adhere to the following:

## GUIDELINES FOR PROPER CONDUCT ARE INCLUDED BUT NOT LIMITED TO:

- 1. Be at your bus stop five (5) minutes before scheduled pick-up time.
- 2. Be courteous to students and neighbors at bus stops and while traveling on the bus.
- 3. Ride only your assigned bus at the assigned stop.
- 4. Do not ask to stop at places other than the regular bus stop.
- 5. Cooperate with driver and bus monitor (if assigned) at all times.
- 6. Do not litter the bus or bus stop.
- 7. Do not use profane/inappropriate language.

#### SAFETY REGULATIONS ARE INCLUDED BUT NOT LIMITED TO:

- 1. Remain in your seat and keep aisles and exits clear.
- 2. Do not throw objects at, on, or from the bus.
- 3. Keep head, hands, and feet inside the bus.
- 4. Do not vandalize equipment.
- 5. Do not eat, drink, or smoke on the bus. Obey the driver.
- 6. Hazardous materials, nuisance items, and animals will not be allowed on the bus.
- 7. Unauthorized persons may not board the bus.
- 8. Riders will respect the rights and safety of others.

In case of any violation of these rules, the bus discipline portion of this policy will be invoked. The building principal/designee is responsible for making decisions concerning the violation of these rules and invoking the bus discipline portion of this policy.

#### Discipline on School Buses

Whenever riding on buses to or from school or a school-sponsored event, District 151 students are expected to help ensure their safety by behaving properly and following all school bus rules.

The principal/designee of each school building will be responsible for the administration of discipline on the school buses serving his/her building.

Gross disobedience or misconduct providing grounds for suspension from riding the school bus include:

- 1. Prohibited student conduct as defined in the Student Discipline policy.
- 2. Willful injury or threat of injury to a bus driver or to another passenger, driver or pedestrian.
- 3. Willful and/or repeated defacement of the bus.
- 4. Repeated use of profane/inappropriate/bullying type language.
- 5. Repeated willful disobedience of the bus driver's directives.
- 6. Continued or repeated minor levels of misconduct disobedience
- 7. Such other behavior that the Administration deems is threatening to the safe operation of the bus and/or its occupants.

#### Procedure

When disciplinary action is necessary, the consequences may include:

- warning letter sent to the student's parent(s) or guardian(s);
- 1 to 5-day suspension from riding the bus;
- 6 to 10-day suspension from riding the bus;
- or suspension of bus privileges for more than 10 days, by action of the Board of Education, for safety reasons.

The District's regular suspension procedures will be used in the case of a suspension of a student's privilege to ride a school bus, subject to the following:

- A student's bus privileges will be suspended only after other avenues of bus discipline have failed and a review of the specific problem is made (e.g., consultation with students, interviews with driver or review of driver reports and/or review of the specific problem with driver and the transportation supervisor). However, the student's bus privileges may be suspended immediately if he/she creates a hazard, threatens the safety of other students, or damages property. In all cases, before a student is suspended from riding a school bus, his/her parent(s) must be informed.
- Any suspension will be reported immediately to the parent(s) or guardian(s) of the student along with a full statement of the reasons for the suspension and a notice of their right to a review. A copy of such notice will be provided to the Board.
- Upon request of the parent(s) or guardian(s), the Board or a hearing officer appointed by the Board will review the suspension.
- At such review, the parent(s) or guardian(s) of the student may appear and discuss the suspension with the Board or its hearing officer.
- In cases where a hearing officer is used, the hearing officer will provide the Board with a written summary of the hearing.
- After the hearing, the Board may take any action it finds appropriate.
- Actions on the bus that are criminal in nature will result in police involvement.

#### Electronic Recordings on School Buses

Electronic recordings, including but not limited to a motion picture, videotape, digital or other video or audio recording may be made on school buses to monitor conduct and to promote and maintain a safe environment for students and employees when transportation is being provided to and from school or any school related activity.

Notice of such recording will be clearly posted on the the entrance door to each bus and inside the bus, in compliance with State law and the rules of the Illinois Department of Transportation, Division of Traffic Safety. Notice of this policy relating to electronic recordings shall also be provided to parents of students and included in student handbooks and other documents including the policies of the School District as provided by law.

Students are prohibited from tampering with electronic recording devices on buses. Students who violate this policy shall be disciplined in accordance with the Board's discipline policies and shall be required to reimburse the School District for any necessary repairs or replacement. Tampering with electronic recording devices on buses may also result in police involvement.



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Care of School Property – Vandalism
Code	710.10
Status	Active
Legal	Illinois Parental Responsibility Law (740 ILCS 115/1 et seq.);
Cross References	710.01 and 715.01
Adopted	May 1, 2006

Students and their parent(s)/guardian(s) are responsible for lost or damaged equipment, school-owned books, buildings, school buses or other school-owned property.

The cost of damage to school buses will be assessed by the Superintendent in conjunction with the busing contractor. The Superintendent will then assess the responsible parties for the cost of restoring the equipment to satisfactory condition.

The Board will seek restitution from students and their parent(s)/guardian(s) for vandalism or other student acts that cause damage to or loss of school property. Where appropriate, the student may be disciplined and the matter referred to local law enforcement authorities for prosecution.



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Smoking
Code	710.12
Status	Active
Legal	Illinois School Code, Sec. 10-20.5b (105 ILCS 5/10-20.5b)
Cross References	465, 465.06, 500.25, 715.01, 830.02 and 830.03
Adopted	May 1, 2006
Last Revised	January 10, 2022

Smoking and vaping are hazardous to the health of students and may present a safety hazard in the schools. Federal Law prohibits smoking in any public building or public grounds. The District will not tolerate the use of tobacco products by students on school property or at school functions. Smoking tobacco and/or possession of smoking or vaping materials (including e-cigarettes, vaping devices, cigarettes, cigars or tobacco in any other form, including smokeless tobacco, which is any loose, cut, shredded, ground, powdered, compressed or leaf tobacco) by students is not permitted on school buses, in school buildings or on school grounds at any time.

Students will be advised of this policy in their student handbooks, and principals and staff will report any violations. Also, the District curriculum will address the dangers of the use of tobacco and vaping products.

Students found using or in possession of tobacco or vaping products will be subject to disciplinary action. Such disciplinary measures may include issuance of a Police citation, personal counseling, withholding of privileges, and suspension for a period of up to ten (10) days, and/or appropriate alternatives to suspension, such as "stop smoking clinics". In all cases, the parent(s)/guardian(s) will be advised and their cooperation will be sought.

Given reasonable grounds for suspicion, school officials may search for and seize tobacco or vaping products brought onto buses or school property.

Organizations sponsoring activities in the schools outside of regular school hours will be made aware of this policy and will be expected to take appropriate disciplinary measures. Failure to do so could result in cancellation of that organization's privilege to use District facilities.



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Alcohol and Drug-Free Schools
Code	710.14
Status	Active
Legal	Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988 (P.L. 100-690); Drug Free Schools and Communities Act Amendments of 1989 (P.L. 101-226); and Illinois School Code, Sec. 10-22.10a and 10-22.6 (105 ILCS 5/10-22.10a and 5/10-22.6).
Cross References	710.03
Adopted	May 1, 2006

District 151 views the unlawful possession and use of alcohol, controlled substances, and illicit drugs, and the sniffing of glue, paint, or aerosol products, to be wrong and harmful. Therefore, it is the policy of the Board of Education that all school property and school programs be free from drugs and alcohol.

#### Purposes

The purposes of this policy include the following:

- 1. To establish and maintain a safe, healthy and productive educational environment for all students;
- 2. To ensure the reputation of the District and its students within the community;
- 3. To reduce the occurrence of accidental injuries to persons or property;
- 4. To reduce absenteeism and tardiness, and improve the quality of the educational program in the District;
- 5. To recommend rehabilitation assistance to any student who needs such help; and
- 6. To comply with the requirements of applicable State and federal laws, rules and regulations.

#### **Definitions**

For the purposes of this policy, the following definitions shall apply:

- 1. A "controlled substance" is one that is:
  - a. Identified in Schedules I through V of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 812), as further defined by regulation at 21 C.F.R. 1308.11 1308.15;
  - b. Not legally obtainable without prescription;
  - c. Being used in a manner different from that prescribed; or
  - d. Legally obtainable but has not been legally obtained.
- 2. "Alcohol" is any beverage that may be consumed and has any alcoholic content.

3. A "conviction" is defined as a finding of guilt (including a plea of no contest) or imposition of a sentence, or both, by any judicial body charged with the responsibility of determining violations of the federal or State criminal drug statutes.

4. A "criminal drug statute" is defined as any criminal law involving the manufacture, distribution, dispensation, use, or possession of any controlled substance.

#### Regulations and Standards of Conduct

1. The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance or illicit drug, or the sniffing of glue, paint, or aerosol products, by any student -- while on any property of the District, while riding on school buses, or while engaged in any School District activities, is prohibited.

2. The distribution, consumption or possession of alcohol by any student on District property or any facilities operated by the District, while riding on school buses, or while engaged in any District activities -- is prohibited.

3. Being under the influence of alcohol or any controlled substance or illicit drug while on District property or any facilities operated by the District, while riding on school buses, or while engaged in any School District activities -- is prohibited.

4. A copy of this policy will be distributed to all students and parents/guardians of students, and will be posted in a place where student notices are commonly posted. All students and parents of students are hereby notified that compliance with the standards of conduct referenced in this policy is mandatory.

5. The District will attempt in all instances to maintain alcohol and drug-free schools for its students in compliance with the requirements of the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988 (P.L. 100-690) and the requirements of the Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act Amendments of 1989 (P.L. 101-226).

#### Disciplinary and Other Action

1. Violation of these prohibitions will result in disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion and referral for prosecution.

2. Disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable provisions of the Illinois School Code and Board policy.

3. The District may require a student who violates any of these prohibitions to participate satisfactorily in an approved substance-or alcohol-abuse assistance or rehabilitation program.

#### Drug-Free Awareness Program

The District will establish age-appropriate, developmentally based drug and alcohol education programs that address:

- 1. The legal, social and health consequences of drug and alcohol use or the sniffing of glue, paint, or aerosol products;
- 2. Effective techniques for resisting peer pressure to use controlled substances, illicit drugs or alcohol;
- 3. The District's policy of maintaining alcohol and drug-free schools;
- 4. Any alcohol and/or drug counseling, rehabilitation, assistance or reentry programs available to students;
- 5. The penalties that may be imposed upon students for violation of this policy.

Each year, all District 151 students will be provided instruction, discussion and study related to effective methods for preventing and avoiding drug and substance abuse. The Superintendent is responsible for determining whether such instruction, discussion and study will be part of regular course programs or special programs, and for determining the amount of instructional time to be devoted to this subject.

Also, instruction will be provided in grades 7-8 in the prevention of abuse of anabolic steroids. The Superintendent or his/her designee will determine the appropriate curriculum program or course for such instruction. Emphasis will be placed upon the understanding that the use of anabolic steroids presents a serious health hazard when used to enhance athletic performance or physical development.

Any student who feels that he/she has developed an addiction or dependence on alcohol or drugs is encouraged to seek assistance. Requests for assistance will be confidential.

#### Searches

Students will be advised that lockers are school, not personal, property. The Superintendent is authorized to request the assistance of law enforcement officials for the purpose of conducting reasonable searches of school grounds and lockers for illegal drugs, including the use of specially trained dogs. To the extent possible, the Superintendent will consult with the Board prior to or, if necessary, immediately after initiating such a request.

#### Review

The District will review its drug and alcohol abuse prevention program on a biennial basis to determine its effectiveness, to implement any changes that may be needed, and to ensure that the sanctions referenced in this policy are consistently enforced.



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Use of Drugs and/or Alcohol
Code	710.15
Status	Active
Adopted	May 1, 2006

#### Zero Tolerance for Alcohol and Drugs

The use of alcohol and drugs is illegal and will not be tolerated. If a student is under the influence of alcohol or drugs, he/she will be immediately suspended from school pending an investigation of the situation. The District reserves the right to inspect any beverage containers brought onto any school property. Students using or possessing alcohol or drugs, including paraphernalia, will be referred to the police.

The mere possession of alcohol or drugs (including the paraphernalia associated with drugs) on a student's person, in a car, at school events, or in a locker will result in suspension and referral to a community enforcement prevention agency. The school assumes that a person bringing such substances to school has the intention of using or selling them. At a disciplinary conference with the dean, counselor, parents, and student, the specific circumstances of the incident and any underlying problems will be discussed. Consequences, which may include suspension or a recommendation for expulsion will be determined at the disciplinary conference. Alternatives, such as further education and counseling, may also be recommended. However, the responsibility for getting special counseling will rest with the student and his/her parents. Prior to the student returning to school, a meeting will be required with parents to determine what follow-up measures have been pursued.



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Weapons
Code	710.16
Status	Active
Legal	Illinois School Code, Sec. 10-22.6 (105 ILCS 5/10-22.6); Gun-Free Schools Act of 1994 (P.L. 103-227); Improving America's Schools Act of 1994 (P.L. 103-382); Individuals with Disabilities Education Act; 18 U.S.C. 921.
Cross References	705.23, 715.01, and 715.07
Adopted	May 1, 2006

#### Definition

For purposes of this policy, the term "weapon" will mean (1) the possession, use, control, or transfer of any gun, rifle, shotgun, weapon as defined by Section 921 of Title 18 of the <u>United States Code</u> (including, but not limited to, any weapon, including a starter gun, that will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by action of an explosive; the frame or receiver of any such weapon; any firearm muffler or silencer; or any destructive device, including any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas), a firearm as defined in Section 1.1 of the Illinois <u>Firearm Owners Identification Act</u>, or use of a weapon as defined in Section 24-1 of the Illinois <u>Criminal Code</u>, (2) any other object if used or attempted to be used to cause bodily harm, including but not limited to knives, brass knuckles, or billy clubs, or (3) "look alikes" of any weapon described in this paragraph.

#### General Policy

The Board of Education believes that weapons and other dangerous objects in school district facilities cause material and substantial disruption to the school environment and present a threat to the life, health and safety of students, employees and visitors on school district property. Accordingly, the possession, use, control or transfer of knives, guns, explosives, firearms or other weapons or dangerous instruments will be prohibited on school buses, in school buildings, and on school grounds, and at any school-sponsored activity or event, and at any activity or event that bears a reasonable relationship to school.

Weapons under the control of law enforcement officials or other authorized personnel will be exempt from this policy.

#### Mandatory Expulsion Policy

In accordance with federal and State law, any student who is determined to have brought a weapon to any school in the District, or to any school-sponsored activity or event, or to any activity or event that bears a reasonable relationship to school, will be expelled from school for a period of not less than one year. However, this expulsion period may be modified by the Superintendent, and the Superintendent's determination may be modified by the Board, on a case-by-case basis. Any student who brings a weapon to school also will be referred to applicable representatives of the criminal justice or juvenile delinquency systems.

The District may provide educational services in an alternative setting to any student who has been expelled in accordance with this policy, to the extent authorized by State law, when in the opinion of the Board, such action is warranted. This policy will be interpreted and implemented in a manner that is consistent with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.

The Board will certify to the State of Illinois, as required by law, that it is in compliance with all State and federal requirements relating to the adoption of this policy. Also, the Board will inform the State about the circumstances surrounding any expulsions imposed hereunder, including the name of the school concerned, the number of students expelled from that school, and the type of weapons involved.

In taking any disciplinary action under this policy, including the expulsion of students, the District will follow procedures required by State and federal law, and Board policy.



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Student Complaints and Grievances
Code	710.17
Status	Active
Adopted	May 1, 2006

The Board respects the right of students to express their concerns and grievances both to the Administration and the Board. Students wishing to grieve a school-related issue may do so by scheduling an appointment with the principal or his/her designee. If the student is not satisfied with the answer provided at the building level, subsequent meetings with the Superintendent or his/her designee and the Board may be scheduled.



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Cellular Telephones and Electronic Signaling Devices
Code	710.20
Status	Active
Legal	Illinois School Code, Sec. 10-21.10 and 10-20.28 (105 ILCS 5/10-21.10 and 5/10-20.28).
Adopted	May 1, 2006

#### Cellular Telephones

While in school, on school property, or bus stops students may possess cellular radio telecommunication devices (hereinafter collectively referred to as "cellular telephones") only after obtaining prior written approval from the building principal. When such approval is given, the following requirements apply:

1. Cellular telephones may be used before and after school only.

2. Cellular telephones may not be used on District buses or on other buses being used for school purposes.

3. Cellular telephones with camera/video devices or capabilities are not permitted under any circumstances.

4. During the school day, cellular telephones must be turned off at all times. Programming cellular telephones to vibrate rather than ring does not fulfill the "off" requirement.

5. Cellular telephones may not be used to conduct any activities which violate Board policy, school rules, state law or federal law.

6. Cellular telephones may not be used in any manner which interferes with, or is disruptive to, educational or extracurricular activities or events.

7. Notwithstanding Rules 1, 2, and 4, cellular radio telecommunication devices may be used at any time to respond to or report an emergency situation.

Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action, including suspension and/or expulsion.

#### Electronic Signaling Devices

Except as otherwise provided herein, the personal use or possession of pocket pagers or other electronic signaling devices by students will be prohibited on school premises during regular school hours and at all other times. All unauthorized electronic signaling devices found on school property will be confiscated by the Superintendent or his/her designee. The presence of such devices may be cause for further search for possession of drugs and for appropriate discipline.

However, with the approval of the building principal, the Board may authorize the use of a pocket pager or other electronic signaling device by a student on school premises -- if such use is necessitated by a medical condition or other special circumstance, and the District has received a prior written request for such use from the parent or guardian of the student.



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Hazing
Code	710.21
Status	Active
Adopted	May 1, 2006

The District will not tolerate hazing (subjecting others to pranks or humiliating ordeals) by any individual, any school-sponsored club or organization or at any school-sponsored activity. Students involved in hazing will be subject to disciplinary proceedings and action. This may also include police involvement.



Book	SHSD 151	
Section	Section 700- Students	
Title	Student Involvement in Gang Activities	
Code	710.27	
Status	Active	
Adopted	May 1, 2006	

#### GANG ACTIVITY AT DISTRICT 151 SCHOOLS WILL NOT BE TOLERATED.

Students are prohibited from being involved in a gang, or engaging in gang-related activity at any time while in school, while on District 151 property, or during school-related events, including after-school events.

For purposes of this policy, and as defined by the Illinois <u>Streetgang Terrorism Omnibus Prevention Act</u> (740 ILCS 147/1, *et. seq*), a "gang" is defined as any combination, confederation, alliance, network, conspiracy, understanding, or other similar conjoining, in law or in fact, of three or more persons with an established hierarchy that, through its membership or through the agency of any member, engages in a course or pattern of criminal activity.

For purposes this policy, "gang-related activity" includes, but is not limited to, the following:

1. Wearing, using, distributing, displaying, or selling any clothing, jewelry, emblem, badge, symbol, insignia, sign, colors, combinations of colors or combinations of clothing, wearing apparel, accessories, identifiers, paraphernalia, or other thing that is indicative or symbolic of drug use or membership or affiliation in any gang;

2. Committing any act or omission, or using any speech, either verbal or non-verbal (such as gestures, graffiti or hand-shakes) showing membership or affiliation in any gang; and

3. Using any speech or committing any act or omission in furtherance of the interests of any gang or gang activity, including, but not limited to:

- a. Soliciting or recruiting others for membership in any gangs;
- b. Requesting any person to pay dues, insurance or protection or otherwise intimidating or threatening any person;
- c. Committing any other illegal act or other violation of school district policies; and/or
- d. Inciting other students to participate in any form of physical violence involving persons or property.

Students who violate this policy shall be subject to disciplinary action.

Disciplinary consequences for violations of this policy may include, but are not limited to, any combination of one or more of the following:

- 1. Parental notification and/or conference with the building principal or his designee;
- 2. Notification to the police liaison officer, if applicable, for additional intervention and assistance;
- 3. Referral to local law enforcement;
- 4. Suspension;
- 5. Expulsion.

The disciplinary action(s) to be imposed for any violation of this policy will be determined at the discretion of the Administration and/or Board of Education, as applicable.



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Student Discipline
Code	715.01
Status	Active
Legal	Illinois School Code, Sec. 10-20.14, 10-21.10, 10-22.6, 24-24, and 31-3 (105 ILCS 5/10 20.14, 5/10 21.10, 5/10 22.6, 5/24 24, and 5/31 3); Gun- Free Schools Act, 20 U.S.C. §3351 et seq., 20 U.S.C. §6081; Illinois Criminal Code, Sec. 12-6.1, 28-1 (720 ILCS 5/12 6.1, 5/28 1); ; 23 Ill.Admin.Code §§ 1.210 and 1.280;
	Illinois School Code, Sec. 10-20.14, 10-21.10, 10-22.6, 24-24, and 31-3 (105 ILCS 5/10 20.14, 5/10 21.10, 5/10 22.6, 5/24 24, and 5/31 3); Gun- Free Schools Act, 20 U.S.C. §3351 et seq., 20 U.S.C. §6081; Illinois Criminal Code, Sec. 12-6.1, 28-1 (720 ILCS 5/12 6.1, 5/28 1); ; 23 Ill.Admin.Code §§ 1.210 and 1.280;
Cross References	520.25, 705.06, 710.01, 710.03, 710.04, 710.06, 710.07, 710.08, 710.09, 710.10, 710.12, 710.14, 710.15, 710.16, 710.20, 710.21, 710.27, 715.02, 715.03, 715.06, 715.07, 730.02 and 830.02.
Adopted	January 6, 2020
Last Revised	March 8, 2021

#### Students

## **Student Discipline**

## Philosophy

The Board believes that a school's climate should promote open expression of beliefs, mutual respect, and trust, as well as personal, caring relationships. However, when that climate is violated by inappropriate or illegal student conduct, the Board recognizes its responsibility to establish disciplinary policies and procedures that deal with such conduct in a fair and responsible manner. In all matters related to student conduct and discipline, the certified staff (teachers and administrators) assumes the supervisory role of parent/guardian to the students. This relationship extends to all activities connected with the school program and may be exercised at any time for the safety and supervision of the students. The Board will give full support and assistance to its certified staff with respect to the maintenance of control and discipline in the schools within the parameters of this policy.

## **Extracurricular Activities**

Students who participate in extracurricular activities, including but not limited to interscholastic athletics and competitive clubs, must also adhere to the requirements of the athletic and activities code.

## Prohibited Student Conduct

Disciplinary action may be taken against any student guilty of gross disobedience or misconduct, including, but not limited to, the following:

- 1. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling tobacco or nicotine materials including without limitation electronic cigarettes.
- 2. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling alcoholic beverages. Students who are under the influence are not permitted to attend school or school functions and are treated as though they have alcohol in their possession.
- 3. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling illegal drugs, controlled substances, cannabis, look-alike drugs and drug paraphernalia (including marijuana, hashish, and medical cannabis unless the student is authorized to be administered a medical cannabis infused product under *Ashley's Law*). Students who are under the influence are not permitted to attend school or school functions and are treated as though they have drugs in their possession.
- 4. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling any prescription drug when not prescribed for the student by a physician or licensed practitioner, or when used in a manner inconsistent with the prescription or prescribing physician's or licensed practitioner's instructions. The use or possession of medical cannabis, even by a student for whom medical cannabis has been prescribed, is prohibited unless the student is authorized to be administered a medical cannabis infused product under *Ashley's Law*.
- 5. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling any inhalant, regardless of whether it contains an illegal drug or controlled substance: (a) that a student believes is, or represents to be capable of, causing intoxication, hallucination, excitement, or dulling of the brain or nervous system; or (b) about which the student engaged in behavior that would lead a reasonable person to believe that the student intended the inhalant to cause intoxication, hallucination, excitement, or dulling of the brain or nervous system. The prohibition in this section does not apply to a student's use of asthma or other legally prescribed inhalant medications.
- 6. Any substance inhaled, injected, smoked, consumed, or otherwise ingested or absorbed with the intention of causing a physiological or psychological change in the body, including without limitation, pure caffeine in tablet or powdered form.
- 7. Using, possessing, distributing, displaying, purchasing, or selling explosives, firearms, knives, or any other object that can reasonably be considered a weapon, or used as a weapon, or that looks like a weapon.
- 8. Using or possessing electronics signaling devices, unless authorized and approved by the building principal. Electronic signaling devices include pocket and all similar electronic paging devices or "beepers".
- 6. Using or possessing cellular telephone, video recording devices or other electronic devices in any manner that violates Board policy or disrupts the educational environment or violates the rights of others, including using the device to take photographs in locker rooms or bathrooms, cheat, or otherwise violate student conduct rules. Prohibited conduct specifically includes, without limitation, creating, sending, sharing, viewing, receiving, or possessing an indecent visual depiction of oneself or another person through the use of a computer, electronic communication device, or cellular phone.
- 7. Disobeying directives from staff members or school officials and/or rules and regulations governing student conduct.
- 8. Engaging in aggressive behavior such as violence, force, noise, coercion, threats, intimidation, fear, or other comparable conduct toward anyone or urging other students to engage in such conduct.
- 9. Causing or attempting to cause damage to, or stealing or attempting to steal, school property or another person's personal property at school.
- 10. Unexcused absenteeism (subject to the truancy statues and Board policy concerning chronic and habitual truancy).
- 11. Being a member of, joining, promising or pledging to join, or soliciting any other person to become a member of any public school fraternity, sorority or secret society.

- 12. Involvement in gangs or gang-related activities, including but not limited to the display or possession of gang symbols, identifiers or paraphernalia, soliciting others for membership, requesting payment of dues, insurance or other forms of protection from any individual, intimidating or threatening any individual, and/or inciting others to participate in any form of physical violence involving persons or property.
- 13. Engaging in any activity that constitutes an interference with or disruption of school purposes or an educational function.
- 14. Harassment of any type, including sexual harassment and racial/ethnic harassment.
- 15. Misuse of electronic technology at school.
- 16. Engaging in hazing or any kind of bullying or aggressive behavior that does physical or psychological harm to a staff person or another student, or urging other students to engage in such conduct. Prohibited conduct specifically includes, without limitation, any use of violence, intimidation, force, noise, coercion, threats, stalking, harassment, sexual harassment, public humiliation, theft or destruction of property, retaliation, hazing, bullying, bullying using a school computer or a school computer network, or other comparable conduct.
- 17. Engaging in any sexual activity, including without limitation, offensive touching, sexual harassment, indecent exposure (including mooning), and sexual assault.
- 18. Engaging in gambling activities, including but not limited to card playing or playing other games of chance or skill for money or other thing of value, wagering upon the results of any game, contest or other activity, or otherwise engaging in gambling as prohibited by law, unless such activities are part of a lesson plan or otherwise occur within the organized educational program of the District.
- 19. Using a home-based or other off-campus computer or other technological device for activities or communications which disrupt, or which could reasonably be expected to disrupt, school or school activities.

A student is subject to disciplinary action for engaging in prohibited student conduct, as described in the section with that name below, whenever the student's conduct is reasonably related to school or school activities, including, but not limited to:

- 1. On, or within sight of, school grounds before, during, or after school hours or at any time;
- 2. Off school grounds at a school-sponsored activity or event, or any activity or event that bears a reasonable relationship to school;
- 3. On a school bus on school bus stop;
- 4. Traveling to or from school or a school activity, function, or event; or
- 5. Anywhere, if the conduct interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the school environment, school operations, or an educational function, including, but not limited to, conduct that may reasonably be considered to: (a) be a threat or an attempted intimidation of a staff member; or (b) endanger the health or safety of students, staff, or school property.

## **Disciplinary Measures**

Disciplinary measures include, but may not be limited to, the following:

- 1. Personal counseling.
- 2. Withholding of privileges.
- 3. Seizure of contraband.
- 4. Suspension from school and all school sponsored events for up to 10 school days, provided that appropriate procedures are followed and that the student's continued presence is likely to pose a threat to safety or cause a disruption to learning opportunities.
- 5. Suspension of bus riding privileges, provided that appropriate procedures are followed.

- 6. Expulsion from school and all school sponsored events for a definite time period not to exceed two (2) calendar years, provided that appropriate procedures are followed. The expulsion of children in early childhood/Pre-K programs is prohibited.
- 7. Notification of juvenile authorities whenever the conduct involves illegal drugs (controlled substances), look-alikes, alcohol, or weapons.
- 8. Notification of parent(s)/guardian(s).
- 9. Removal from classroom.
- 10. In-school suspension for a period not to exceed five (5) consecutive school days. The building principal or a designee will ensure that the student is properly supervised.
- 11. Detention or Saturday school, provided that the student's parent(s)/guardian(s) has been notified, transportation arrangements are agreed upon, and proper supervision is ensured.

Disciplinary measures shall not include:

- 1. Encouragement or advice to drop out of school.
- 2. Monetary fines (although a student may be required to pay restitution for lost, stolen or damaged property).
- 3. Zero tolerance policies except as required by law.

## Corporal Punishment

Corporal punishment will not be used. Corporal punishment is defined as slapping, paddling, or prolonged maintenance of students in physically painful positions, or intentional infliction of

bodily harm. Corporal punishment does not include, and certificated personnel are permitted to use, reasonable force as needed to maintain safety for other students, school personnel, or persons, or for the purpose of self-defense or the defense of property.

## Bullying

Bullying is defined as using force, noise, coercion, threats, intimidation, fear, or other aggressive conduct toward anyone or urging other students to engage in such conduct. School personnel will create a supportive climate that encourages the reporting of bullying behavior. When teachers or other school staff observe bullying behavior or when it is reported to them, they are to immediately address that behavior. This can include interventions such as redirecting toward appropriate behavior, modeling positive behavior, or pursuing other consequences consistent with school policy.

Repetition of bullying behavior by a student will be documented by the school staff to provide information needed to develop appropriate interventions. When significant evidence is collected to suggest the existence of repeated bullying behavior, the parents or guardians of the student will be notified. Interventions for repeated bullying behavior will be school-based and/or community based. The fact that students with bullying tendencies receive interventions shall not preclude any other type of discipline from being imposed in accordance with this policy.

## Weapons

In accordance with federal and State law, any student who possesses a weapon at any school in the District, at any school-sponsored activity or event, or at any activity or event that bears a reasonable relationship to District 151, will be expelled from school for a period of not less than one year. However, this expulsion period may be modified by the Superintendent, and the Superintendent's determination may be modified by the Board, on a case-by-case basis.

For the purposes of this policy, the term "weapon" means (1) possession, use, control or transfer of any gun, rifle, shotgun, "weapon" as defined by Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States Code (including, but not limited to, any weapon, including a starter gun, that will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by action of an explosive; the frame or receiver of any such weapon; any firearm muffler or silencer; or any destructive device, including any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas), "firearm" as defined in Section 1.1 of the Illinois Firearm Owners Identification Act, or use of a "weapon" as defined in Section 24-1 of the Illinois Criminal Code, (2) knives, brass knuckles, or billy clubs, or (3) "look alikes" of any weapon as defined in this policy.

## Aggressive Behavior

Aggressive behavior is defined as using, or urging other students to use, force, noise, coercion, threats, intimidation, bullying, fear or other comparable conduct toward another person. A student who repeatedly engages in aggressive behavior or repeatedly demonstrates behaviors that put the student at risk for engaging in future aggressive behavior ("at-risk behavior") shall be considered to have aggressive tendencies. When a student displays aggressive tendencies that District personnel has been informed of or observed, District personnel shall record the aggressive and/or at-risk behavior. When a student with aggressive tendencies engages in aggressive and/or at-risk behavior. When a student with aggressive tendencies engages in aggressive and/or at-risk behavior. When a student with aggressive tendencies engages in aggressive and/or at-risk behavior, District administrators shall assist the student's parents in receiving personal counseling

(which may be at the parent's expense) in order to mitigate the aggressive tendencies. The fact that students with aggressive tendencies receive personal counseling shall not preclude any other type of discipline from being imposed in accord with the other provisions of this policy.

## Psychotropic or Psychostimulant Medication

No disciplinary action shall be taken that is based, in whole or in part, on the refusal of a student's parent or guardian to administer or consent to the administration of psychotropic or psychostimulant medication to the student. This policy does not prohibit disciplinary action or the use of behavioral interventions, to the extent otherwise permitted by law, when a student violates a Board of Education policy, school or class rule, and/or federal, State or local law, while at school, on school property, or at a school-related activity or event.

At least once every two years, the inservice training of certified school personnel and administrators must include training on current best practices regarding the identification and treatment of attention deficit disorder (ADD) and attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD), the application of non-averse behavioral interventions in the school environment, and the use of psychotropic or psychostimulant medication for school-age children. The Board of Education authorizes the Superintendent or his/her designee to develop an inservice training program or programs and/or to identify outside training programs which meet these requirements.

## Due Process

Before receiving disciplinary action under this policy, the student will be notified of the wrongful nature of the alleged conduct, and given the opportunity to deny or explain his/her conduct.

In taking any disciplinary action under this policy, including the expulsion of students, the District will follow procedures required by State and federal law and Board policy.

## Authority to Impose Discipline

Each teacher, and any other school personnel when students are under his/her charge, is authorized to impose any disciplinary measure (other than suspension, expulsion, corporal punishment or in- school suspension) that is appropriate and in accordance with District/school policies and rules on student discipline. Teachers, other certificated employees, and other persons (whether or not certificated) providing a related service for or with respect to a student, will maintain discipline in the school and on school grounds.

Reasonable force may be used as needed to maintain safety for other students, school personnel or persons, or for the purpose of self-defense or the defense of property. Also, teachers may remove students from a classroom in cases of disruptive behavior.

The Superintendent, building principals, assistant building principals or deans of students are authorized to impose the same disciplinary measures as teachers. Also, they may suspend students guilty of gross disobedience or misconduct from school (including all school functions) and from riding the school bus for a period not to exceed 10 school days, provided the appropriate procedures are followed.

The Board may suspend a student from riding the bus in excess of 10 days for safety reasons. Further, students guilty of gross disobedience or misconduct may be expelled from riding the bus for the remainder of the school term or for a shorter period, as determined by the Board.

## Professional Development

The Superintendent or his/her designee will develop a plan to provide professional development to teachers, administrators and school staff on the adverse consequences of school exclusion and justice system involvement, effective classroom management, culturally responsive discipline, and developmentally appropriate disciplinary methods.

## **Disciplinary Policies and Rules**

The Superintendent or his/her designee, with input from the parent-teacher advisory committee, will prepare disciplinary rules that implement the District's policies.

The District disciplinary policies and rules, will be published and distributed to each student's parent(s)/guardian(s) within 15 days of the beginning of the school year.

Each student is responsible for becoming familiar with the District's disciplinary policies and rules, and any claim of lack of knowledge of such policies and rules will not affect any disciplinary proceedings that are initiated against a student.

## Student-Parent Handbook

The Superintendent or his/her designee, with input from the parent-teacher advisory committee, will prepare disciplinary rules that implement the District's policies.

A student-parent handbook that includes the District's disciplinary policies and rules, will be published and distributed to each student's parent(s)/guardian(s) within 15 days of the beginning of the school year or the student's enrollment.

## Suspension Procedures

The following suspension procedures will be followed:

- 1. The appropriate school official will provide the student with oral or written notice of the charges against him/her and the reasons for the charges. If the student denies the charges, the student will be given an opportunity to present his/her explanation of the conduct to school officials.
- 2. Prior notice and hearing are not required. The student can be immediately removed from school when the student's presence poses a continuing danger to persons or property or an ongoing threat of disruption of the educational process. In such cases, the notice and hearing will follow as soon as practicable.
- 3. A suspension will be reported immediately to the student's parent(s)/guardians(s). The student will not be sent home during school hours until the appropriate school official has contacted the student's parent(s)/guardian(s).

4. A written notice of the suspension will be given to the student's parent(s)/guardians(s) as soon as possible and will contain the specific act and reasons for the suspension, the rule(s) or regulation(s) that the student is accused of having broken, the beginning date and number of days of the suspension, the rational for the duration of the suspension, and the right to review the suspension. When the suspension is for more than three (3) days, the notice shall also include other interventions that were attempted or a statement if other interventions were not available. When the suspension is for more that four (4) days, the notice shall also include available support services during the term of the suspension or a statement if no other support services are available.

5. A request to review the suspension must be sent to the building principal within five (5) school days after receipt of the suspension notice. Upon receipt of such a request, an informal hearing will be held before the Superintendent of his/her designee. If the suspension is upheld, the parent(s)/guardian(s) may request a hearing before the Board's hearing officer.

6. A request for a hearing before the hearing officer must be sent to the Superintendent or his/her designee within five (5) school days after receipt of the Superintendent's or his/her designee's decision. Upon receipt of such a request, a hearing will be conducted by a hearing officer appointed by the Board.

At the hearing, the student has the right to: have legal counsel at his/her own expense, the right to question the person who made the decision to suspend him/her, the right to have and question witnesses, and the right to make a statement in his/her own behalf.

After presentation of the evidence, the hearing officer will report to the Board via a written summary of the evidence heard. The Board may then take such action as it finds appropriate.

Students who are suspended from school and students who are suspended from the school bus who do not have alternate transportation to school shall be provided with the opportunity to make up the missed work for equivalent academic credit.

## Expulsion Procedures

The following expulsion procedures will be followed:

- The building administrator will recommend to the Superintendent whether a student should be expelled. If the Superintendent agrees with the building principal, a written notice will be sent to the student and his/her parent(s)/guardian(s) by registered or certified mail. The written notice will include (1) the reason the student is being recommended for expulsion, (2) the specific rule(s) or regulation(s) the student is accused of breaking, (3) the fact that a hearing will be conducted to discuss the student's behavior, (4) the time, date and place of the hearing, and (5) the fact that the hearing will be conducted by a hearing officer appointed by the Board. The written notice also will advise the student that, at the hearing, he/she has the right to have legal counsel at his or her own expense, the right to question the building administrator who made the recommendation to expel him/her, the right to have and question witnesses, and the right to make a statement in his/her behalf.
- 2. At the expulsion hearing, the hearing officer will hear evidence of the student's alleged gross disobedience or misconduct and then submit a written report to the Board. Upon receipt of the hearing officer's report and recommendation, and within ten (10) days of the hearing, the Board will decide whether expulsion is appropriate.
- 1. A written decision of the Board will be given to the student and his or her parent(s)/guardian(s) within five (5) school days of making the decision. The written decision shall include the specific reasons for the expulsion and the rationale for the duration of the expulsion.

## Coordination with Law Enforcement

The Board of Education recognizes the importance of coordination with local law enforcement agencies. The Superintendent, with input from the parent advisory committee, shall develop for Board consideration a memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement agencies to define the role of law enforcement in the District with a primary focus on school safety, role models, and community development.

LEGAL REF.: Illinois School Code, Sec. 10-20.14, 10-21.10, 10-22.6, 24-24, and 31-3 (105 ILCS 5/10 20.14, 5/10 21.10, 5/10 22.6, 5/24 24, and 5/31 3); Gun- Free Schools Act, 20 U.S.C. §3351 et seq., 20 U.S.C. §6081; Illinois Criminal Code, Sec. 12-6.1, 28-1 (720 ILCS 5/12 6.1, 5/28 1); ; 23 Ill.Admin.Code §§ 1.210 and 1.280;

CROSS REF.: 520.25, 705.06, 710.01, 710.03, 710.04, 710.06, 710.07, 710.08, 710.09, 710.10, 710.12, 710.12, 710.15, 710.16, 710.20, 710.21, 710.27, 715.02, 715.03, 715.06, 715.07, 730.02 and 830.02.

Adopted: March 2021

9/26/24, 12:03 PM

BoardDocs® LT



Book	SHSD 151
Section	Section 700- Students
Title	Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment
Code	715.13
Status	Active
Adopted	January 6, 2020
Last Revised	December 20, 2023
Last Reviewed	July 10, 2023

Bullying, intimidation, and harassment diminish a student's ability to learn and a school's ability to educate. Preventing students from engaging in these disruptive behaviors and providing all students equal access to a safe, non-hostile learning environment are important District goals.

Bullying on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, national origin, military status, unfavorable discharge status from the military service, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender-related identity or expression, ancestry, age, religion, physical or mental disability, order of protection status, status of being homeless, or actual or potential marital or parental status, including pregnancy, association with a person or group with one or more of the aforementioned actual or perceived characteristics, or any other distinguishing characteristic **is prohibited** in each of the following situations:

- 1. During any school-sponsored education program or activity.
- 2. While in school, on school property, on school buses or other school vehicles, at designated school bus stops waiting for the school bus, or at school-sponsored or school-sanctioned events or activities.
- 3. Through the transmission of information from a school computer, a school computer network, or other similar electronic school equipment.
- 4. Through the transmission of information from a computer that is accessed at a nonschool-related location, activity, function, or program or from the use of technology or an electronic device that is not owned, leased, or used by the School District or school if the bullying causes a substantial disruption to the educational process or orderly operation of a school. This paragraph (item #4) applies only when a school administrator or teacher receives a report that bullying through this means has occurred; it does not require staff members to monitor any nonschool-related activity, function, or program.

## Definitions from 105 ILCS 5/27-23.7

*Bullying* includes *cyberbullying* and means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or electronically, directed toward a student or students that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

- 1. Placing the student or students in reasonable fear of harm to the student's or students' person or property;
- 2. Causing a substantially detrimental effect on the student's or students' physical or mental health;
- 3. Substantially interfering with the student's or students' academic performance; or
- 4. Substantially interfering with the student's or students' ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.

Bullying may take various forms, including without limitation one or more of the following: harassment, threats, intimidation, stalking, physical violence, sexual harassment, sexual violence, theft, public humiliation, destruction of property, or retaliation for asserting or alleging an act of bullying. This list is meant to be illustrative and non-exhaustive.

*Cyberbullying* means bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication, including without limitation any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data, or intelligence of any nature transmitted in whole or in part by a wire, radio, electromagnetic system, photo-electronic system, or photo-optical system, including without limitation electronic mail, Internet communications, instant messages, or facsimile communications. *Cyberbullying* includes the creation of a webpage or weblog in which the creator assumes the identity of another person or the knowing impersonation of another person as the author of posted content or messages if the creation or impersonation creates any of the effects enumerated in the definition of *bullying*. *Cyberbullying* also includes the distribution by electronic means of a communication to more than one person or the posting of material on an electronic medium that may be accessed by one or more persons if the distribution or posting creates any of the effects enumerated in the definition of *bullying*.

*Restorative measures* means a continuum of school-based alternatives to exclusionary discipline, such as suspensions and expulsions, that: (i) are adapted to the particular needs of the school and community, (ii) contribute to maintaining school safety, (iii) protect the integrity of a positive and productive learning climate, (iv) teach students the personal and interpersonal skills they will need to be successful in school and society, (v) serve to build and restore relationships among students, families, schools, and communities, and (vi) reduce the likelihood of future disruption by balancing accountability with an understanding of students' behavioral health needs in order to keep students in school (vii) increase student accountability if the incident of bullying is based on religion, race, ethnicity, or any other category that is identified in the Illinois Human Rights Act.

*School personnel* means persons employed by, on contract with, or who volunteer in a school district, including without limitation school and school district administrators, teachers, school guidance counselors, school social workers, school counselors, school psychologists, school nurses, cafeteria workers, custodians, bus drivers, school resource officers, and security guards.

## Bullying Prevention and Response Plan

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a bullying prevention and response plan that advances the District's goal of providing all students with a safe learning environment free of bullying and harassment. This plan must be consistent with the requirements listed below; each numbered requirement, 1-12, corresponds with the same number in the list of required policy components in 105 ILCS 5/27-23.7(b) 1-12.

- 1. The District uses the definition of *bullying* as provided in this policy.
- 2. Bullying is contrary to State law and the policy of this District. However, nothing in the District's bullying prevention and response plan is intended to infringe upon any right to exercise free expression or the free exercise of religion or religiously based views protected under the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution or under Section 3 of Article I of the Illinois Constitution.
- 3. Students are encouraged to immediately report bullying. A report may be made orally or in writing to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, Building Principal, Assistant Building Principal, Counselor, a Complaint Manager, or any staff member with whom the student is comfortable speaking. Anyone, including staff members and parents/guardians, who has information about actual or threatened bullying is encouraged to report it to the District named officials or any staff member. The District named officials and all staff members are available for help with a bully or to make a report about bullying. Anonymous reports are also accepted.

## **Nondiscrimination Coordinator:**

Kathryn Varner	
Name	
525 E. 162 <sup>nd</sup> St., South Holland, IL	
60473	
Address	
kvarner@shsd151.org	
Email	
708-339-1516	
Telephone	
Complaint Managers:	
Karen Anderson	Jerald McNair
Name	Name
525 E. 162 <sup>nd</sup> St., South Holland, IL	15700 Orchid Dr., South Holland, IL
60473	60473

Address kanderson@shsd151.org	Address jmcnair@shsd151.org
Email	Email
708-339-1516	708u-339-2117
Telephone	Telephone

- 4. Consistent with federal and State laws and rules governing student privacy rights, the Superintendent or designee shall within 24 hours inform the parent(s)/guardian(s) of every student involved in an alleged incident of bullying and promptly discuss, as appropriate, the availability of social work services, counseling, school psychological services, other interventions, and restorative measures.
- 5. The Superintendent or designee shall promptly investigate and address reports of bullying, by, among other things:
  - a. Making all reasonable efforts to complete the investigation within 10 school days after the date the report of a bullying incident was received and taking into consideration additional relevant information received during the course of the investigation about the reported bullying incident.
  - b. Involving appropriate school support personnel and other staff persons with knowledge, experience, and training on bullying prevention, as deemed appropriate, in the investigation process.
  - c. Notifying the Building Principal or school administrator or designee of the reported incident of bullying as soon as possible after the report is received.
  - d. Consistent with federal and State laws and rules governing student privacy rights, providing parents/guardians of the students who are parties to the investigation information about the investigation and an opportunity to meet with the Building Principal or school administrator or his or her designee to discuss the investigation, the findings of the investigation, and the actions taken to address the reported incident of bullying.

The Superintendent or designee shall investigate whether a reported incident of bullying is within the permissible scope of the District's jurisdiction and shall require that the District provide the victim with information regarding services that are available within the District and community, such as counseling, support services, and other programs.

- 6. The Superintendent or designee shall use interventions to address bullying, that may include, but are not limited to, school social work services, restorative measures, social-emotional skill building, counseling, school psychological services, and community-based services.
- 7. A reprisal or retaliation against any person who reports an act of bullying **is prohibited**. A student's act of reprisal or retaliation will be treated as *bullying* for purposes of determining any consequences or other appropriate remedial actions.
- 8. A student will not be punished for reporting bullying or supplying information, even if the District's investigation concludes that no bullying occurred. However, knowingly making a false accusation or providing knowingly false information will be treated as *bullying* for purposes of determining any consequences or other appropriate remedial actions.
- 9. The District's bullying prevention and response plan must be based on the engagement of a range of school stakeholders, including students and parents/guardians.
- 10. The Superintendent or designee shall post this policy on the District's website, if any, and include it in the student handbook, and, where applicable, post it where other policies, rules, and standards of conduct are currently posted. The policy must be distributed annually to parents/guardians, students, and school personnel (including new employees when hired), and must also be provided periodically throughout the school year to students and faculty.
- 11. The Superintendent or designee shall assist the Board with its evaluation and assessment of this policy's outcomes and effectiveness. This process shall include, without limitation:
  - a. The frequency of victimization;
  - b. Student, staff, and family observations of safety at a school;
  - c. Identification of areas of a school where bullying occurs;
  - d. The types of bullying utilized; and
  - e. Bystander intervention or participation.

The evaluation process may use relevant data and information that the District already collects for other purposes. The Superintendent or designee must post the information developed as a result of the policy evaluation on the District's website, or if a website is not available, the information must be provided to school administrators, Board members, school personnel, parents/guardians, and students.

- 12. The Superintendent or designee shall fully implement the Board policies, including without limitation, the following:
  - a. Uniform Grievance Procedure. A student may use this policy to complain about bullying.
  - b. *Curriculum Content*. Bullying prevention and character instruction is provided in all grades in accordance with State law.
  - c. *Student Social and Emotional Development*. Student social and emotional development is incorporated into the District's educational program as required by State law.
  - d. Access to Electronic Networks. This policy states that the use of the District's electronic networks is limited to: (1) support of education and/or research, or (2) a legitimate business use.
  - e. *Harassment of Students Prohibited*. This policy prohibits *any* person from harassing, intimidating, or bullying a student based on an identified actual or perceived characteristic (the list of characteristics in 7:20 is the same as the list in this policy).
  - f. *Teen Dating Violence Prohibited*. This policy prohibits teen dating violence on school property, at school sponsored activities, and in vehicles used for school-provided transportation.
  - g. *Student Behavior*. This policy prohibits, and provides consequences for, hazing, bullying, or other aggressive behaviors, or urging other students to engage in such conduct.
  - h. Restrictions on Publications; Elementary Schools. These policies prohibit students from and provide consequences for:

     accessing and/or distributing at school any written, printed, or electronic material, including material from the Internet, that will cause substantial disruption of the proper and orderly operation and discipline of the school or school activities, and (2) creating and/or distributing written, printed, or electronic material, including photographic material and blogs, that causes substantial disruption to school operations or interferes with the rights of other students or staff members.
- LEGAL REF.: 405 ILCS 49/, Children's Mental Health Act. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.14, 5/24-24, and 5/27-23.7. 23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.240 and §1.280.